Seabury

December 5, 2019

Mr. Rich Wysocki

Principal Cost Analyst

Office of CON & Rate Setting
State of Connecticut
Department of Social Services
55 Farmington Avenue,
Hartford, CT 06105-3724

Dear Rich:

Attached is a copy of Seabury’s amended Disclosure Statement, as required by Section
17B-528 of Connecticut General Statutes.

The changes incorporate the following:

The Board of Directors’ changes in membership has been reflected in Section II
Officers and Directors on pages 2-3 and Executive Management Team in
Section II1 on page 4.

Section VIII Description of Property, The Views, has been updated to reflect
current information about Assisted Living on page 7.

Section IX Strategic Repositioning Plan on pages 8-10 has been updated to
reflect current information about Seabury’s Strategic Plan related to the “100”
Cottages.

Fxhibit D, Entrance Fees/Periodic Changes has been revised to include new fee
plans.

These are the only material changes to the Disclosure Statement from the January 2019
filing through this amendment. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

f&n%e%y, (—\\\)

Renée J. Bernasconi, MBA
President & CEQ







ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT

SEABURY

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

A Life Plan Contract (formerly known as a Continuing Care Contract) is
a financial investment, and your investment may be at risk. Seabury’s
ability to meet its contractual obligations under such contract depends on
Seabury’s financial performance. We advise that you consult an attorney
or other professional experienced in matters relating to investment in
Life Plan Communities before you sign a Life Plan Contract (Continuing
Care Contract). The Department of Social Services does not guarantee
the security of your investment,

I acknowledge that I have reviewed the above statement as well as the
Seabury Disclosure Statement and Residency Agreement.

Signature Date

Seabury Staff Signature Date
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DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

SEABURY

Sponsored by Seabury, Incorporated

November 2019

REGISTRATION  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DEPARTMENT
OF SOCIAL SERVICES OR THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT, NOR
DOES SUCH REGISTRATION EVIDENCE THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION SET FORTH IN THIS
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT.

Note: Church Home of Hartford’s fiscal year ends on September 30,
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IL. OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated, a non-profit corporation affiliated
with the Episcopal Church of Connecticut, was established in 1876 as a
retirement home for women. Seabury, Incorporated/Church Home’s Board of
Directors, who are responsible for managing Seabury, is listed below. No
individuals or other entities hold any ownership interest in the corporation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Right Rev. lan T. Douglas
Ecclesiastical Authority, Ex Officio
Episcopal Diocesan House
290 Pratt Street, Box 52
Meriden, CT 06450
203-639-3501 (O}

E-mail: itdouglas@episcopalct.org

BISHOP’'S REPRESENTATIVE, Ex Officio
The Reverend Rowena Kemp
Grace Church
55 New Park Avenue
Hartford, CT 06106
860-233-0825
E-mail: rowjkemp@email.com

Mr. Thomas E. Andersen
Bartlett Brainard Eacott, Incorporated
70 Griffith Road South
Bloomfield, CT 06002-1352
860-380-5550 (0)
860-243-8929 {Fax)

E-mail: tandersen@bbeinc.com

Bradford S. Babbhitt
Robinson & Cole LLP
280 Trumbull Street
Hartford, CT 06103

860-275-8209 (O)
860-275-8299 (Fax)

E-mail: bhabbiti@rc.com

Cynthia Becker
237 Hollister Drive
Avon, CT 06001
E-mail: checkerl6@netzero.net

Renée J. Bernasconi *{Non-Director)
President
Seabury
200 Seabury Drive
Bloomfield, CT 06002
E-mail: reneebernasconi@seaburylife.org

*Voice but no vote
Linda Berry
343 Seabury Drive
Bloomfield, CT 06002
E-mail: lindaberry343@gmail.com

Robert Hewey
307 Seabury Drive
Bloomfield, CT 06002
E-mail: boltenheh@aol.com




Dr. Jonathan A. Dixon
Board Chair
Hartford Hospital
Rheumatology Clinic
85 Seymour Street, Suite #601
Hartford, CT 06106
E-mail: jenathan. Dixon@hhchealth.ore

*mir. A. Raymond Madorin
Director Emeritus
300 Mountain Spring Road
Farmington, CT 06032

E-mail: rav.madorin@email.com

*Mr, Gale A. Mattison
Birector Emeritus
12 Sandhurst Drive
West Hartford, CT 06107
E-mail: g.mattison@comcasi.net

Ross Mezzanotte
KBE Building Corp.
76 Batterson Park Road
Farmington, CT 06032
E-mail: rmezzanotie@kbebuilding.com

Ms. Marnie W. Muelier
102 N. Beacon Street
Hartford, CT 06105
E-mail: muelermw®@vahoo.com

Monique R. Polidoro, Esq.
Rogin Nassau LLC
CityPlace 1, 22™ Floor
185 Asyium Street
Hartford, CT 06103-3460
E-mail: moolidoro@roginiaw.com

The Rev. Erl G. Purnell
Vice Chair
46 Qverlook Terrace
Simsbury, CT 06070
E-mail: puckpurnell@mac.com

vir. Craig Scott
Treasurer
Aero Gear, Inc.
1050 Day Hill Road
Windsor, CT 06085
E-mail: pwscotiS@hotmail.com

Michael Sherrill
Cigna
900 Cottage Grove
Bloomfield, CT 06002
E-mail: hiisherrill@comcast.net

Mr. Ronald Theriault
OneDigital Health and Benefits
5 Batterson Park Road, Suite 1

Farmington, CT 06032
E-mail: rtheriauit@onedigital.com

Mpr. John R. Wadsworth
Secretary
292 Fern Sireet
West Hartford, CT 06119

E-mail: 289Wadsworth@comcast.net
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1. NAME AND ADDRESS OF PROVIDER
CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD, INCORPORATED

d/b/a

SEABURY

200 Seabury Drive
Bloomfield, CT 06002

A NOT-FOR-PROFIT, NON-STOCK CONNECTICUT CORPORATION

VISION
To Revolutionize the Experience of Aging.
MISSION
Seabury Enhances Lives.
VALUES STATEMENT

We realize our mission by honoring the past while engaging in the present
and planning for the future. To provide the highest quality of life (physical,
spiritual and emotional) for residents, employees and other community
members, we are guided by a philosophy of wellness, compassion and
Jinancial assistance so people may lead their lives with dignity and joy. We
Jollow the Five-Star service standards in addition to striving for the best
stewardship of our resources and the environment. Revolutionizing the
experience of aging requires action, and we work ceaselessly to achieve our
goals.
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President & CEQO Renée J. Bernasconi, LNHA, MBA is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the organization. Length of service: 23

years

1. EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Renée J. Bernasconi, LNHA, MBA
President & Chief Executive Officer
Length of service: 23 years

Ruslan Kuzmenko, CPA
Chief Financial Officer &
Vice President, Finance
Length of service: 5 years

Jacob S. Bompastore, LNHA

Vice President of Health Services,
Administrator, Skilled Nursing
Length of service: 6 months

Michael W. Oakes
Vice President, Engineering & Security
Length of service: 1 month

Gwynne C. Deveau, PHR, SHRM-CP
Vice President, Human Resources
Length of service: 11 years

Heather A. Stanton
Vice President, Resident & Member Services
Length of service: 13 years

Christine T. Dupont
Vice President, Marketing & Communications
Length of service: 6 years

IV. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated has provided housing with support
services for older adults in the Hartford area continuously since 1876.

V. CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING

At the Church Home of Hartford, Inc. (CHHI) Annual Meeting of the
Members on November 2, 2017, a resolution was adopted to incorporate
Seabury Inc., a Connecticut nonstock Corporation. The Board determined that
it is in the best interest of CHHI and the affiliates to restructure the

Corporation.

Among other things, the current Member of Seabury Charitable Foundation
(SCF) and Seabury At Home (SAH) will cease to be CHHI. Seabury, Inc.
will be a holding company and the sole member of CHHI, SAH and SCF.
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Amended bylaws state that in the absence of the Bishop at meetings, the
Bishop’s Representative has both a voice and a vote at Board meetings. The
Chair of Church Home Auxiliary has been removed as the Auxiliary
relinquished their charter several years ago. A new Standing Committee was
introduced, Spirituality and Worship Committee, which will serve as an

interface between the Corporation and The Episcopal Church of Connecticut
(ECCT).

Appointment of Officers established that the President of the Board becomes
the Chair of the Board and the Executive Vice President and CEO becomes
the President and CEQ. The Bishop is the Ecclesiastical Authority and shall
serve as the principal pastor to the Corporation and as the chief liaison
between the Corporation and the Episcopal Church of Connecticut. In that
role, the Ecclesiastical Authority has oversight of the Bishops’ Chapel and, in
consultation with the President, will appoint the Chaplain.

The Board of Directors for Seabury Inc. and Church Home of Hartford, Inc.
will be concurrent and SCF and SAH will maintain their separate boards.
Seabury Inc. shall be operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary or educational purposes by operating for the benefit of, performing the
functions, and carrying out the purposes of the Church Home of Hartford, Inc.,
Seabury Charitable Foundation, Inc., and Seabury At Home, Inc.

V1. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Seabury, Incorporated and Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated, nor any
of its officers or directors, has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo
contendere to a felony charge or held liable of enjoined in a civil action by
final judgment involving fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property. Neither have they had any business or health
care licenses or permits suspended or revoked by any jurisdiction within the
past five years or been subject to a currently effective injunction, or
restrictive or remedial order of a court of record.

VII. AFFILIATION

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated is affiliated with the Episcopal
Church of Connecticut and is a recognized mission of the Diocese; however,



the Diocese has no responsibility for the financial and contractual
obligations of Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated.

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated is a tax-exempt organization under
Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Seabury, Incorporated is
the sole member of Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated. Church Home
of Hartford, Incorporated is the sole member of the Seabury Charitable
Foundation, Incorporated.

Seabury At Home, Incorporated was incorporated in 2006 and began
operating as a continuing care retirement community without walls in
October 2008. Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated is the sole member of
Seabury At Home, Incorporated. The common areas and amenities Seabury
offers are available to Seabury At Home Members. The assisted living and
nursing home facilities are available on an as-needed and as-available basis.

The Board of Directors for both Seabury At Home, Inc. and the Seabury
Charitable Foundation, Inc. developed a joint Limited Liability Corporation
(Seabury at Powder Forest, LLC). This LLC was formed to purchase 15
acres of land at 200 Powder Forest Drive, Simsbury, CT. Each corporation
will assume half the debt, which is merely the transfer of cash investment to
land investment. It is important to emphasize that this land is for future
development and will not be actively developed until Phases B&C of
Seabury’s current campus has stabilized.

VIII. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Seabury is an Active Life Plan Community (formerly known as a Continuing
Care Retirement Community), providing housing, services, and health care.
The Community is located in Bloomfield, Connecticut, on a parcel of sixty-
six acres north of Wintonbury Avenue at the intersection of School Street.

This site 1s three miles from the Bloomfield commercial center. Surrounded
by flood control areas, wetlands, and reserved open space, the rural character
of the site will be preserved and protected from urban growth and
development. The main buildings are constructed on a knoll, which
provides views of the surrounding countryside in all directions.




The major buildings of Seabury are linked together, providing weather-
protected interior circulation between the residents’ apartments and the
services provided in the community center and health care buildings.
Cottage clusters are also built around the main complex, creating a campus
atmosphere.

Seabury is composed of the following individual components:

. The Commons — containing all social, recreational, and support
services, including: administrative suite, auditorium, chapel, salon
and spa, bistro, community rooms, convenience shop, exercise rooms,
library, game room, greenhouse, woodshop, community and private
dining rooms, food preparation, maintenance, housekeeping, and
laundry.

. Apartment Building — 219 apartments include studios, one- and two-
bedroom and two bedrooms with a den.

. Cottage Clusters - 33 cottages include one- and two-bedroom and two
bedrooms with a den, and 5 villas that are two-bedrooms with a den.

. Davis Center, Brewer Center and Larus Center (short-term
rehabilitation) — 72 skilled nursing care beds.

. The Views — 52 assisted living beds, 22 of which are licensed
Residential Care Facility beds. As of December 2019, The Views will
have 6 assisted living/transitional care residences.

. Rehabilitation Services — Physical, Occupational and Speech
therapies.
. The Health Clinic — On the premises where residents may be

examined and treated as outpatients. Staffed by nurses and physicians
who have scheduled office hours at the clinic.

. Seabury Meadows — 58 beds, Memory Support/Assisted Living
facility. There are 14 licensed Residential Care Facility beds.

The total number of independent living apartments and cottages is 257 and
includes underground parking, natatorium, and fitness centers.
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. Seabury At Home Incorporated (SAHI) — Office suite located at 200
Seabury Drive.

. Seabury Visiting Nurses — Seabury has its own Home Care Agency,
licensed by the State of Connecticut. Home health care services may
be arranged at your request and at your expense, for short-term
assistance in your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage. Some
home health agency services may be covered by Medicare or
supplemental insurance. Seabury Visiting Nurses is Medicare-certified.

. Seabury Care Now — is a non-medical homemaker-companion agency
registered with the Connecticut Department of Consumer Protection.
This agency provides homemaker, companion, and personal care
assistance to residents on campus, Seabury At Home members and
clients off campus.

IX. STRATEGIC REPOSITIONING PLAN

The Seabury Strategic Repositioning Plan consisted of several phases of
work which expanded, updated and enhanced the existing campus.
Construction of the project commenced in April 2015, and was completed in
the winter of 2018.

Phase A expanded the administrative offices, main entrance, lobby, and
main kitchen. It included the renovation of the private dining room and a
new expanded bistro addition. The resident post office boxes and an
improved “Community Activity Space” have been constructed above the
new salon and day spa (on the entrance level). In addition, all areas in the
Commons building were redecorated. Additional parking spaces have been
added at the North end of the campus. Full campus generation was also
included as part of Phase A.

Seabury obtained a BB rating from Fitch. The finance team closed $34.5
million in financing for Phase A with an average yield of 4.73%.

The start of construction for Phase B & C was contingent on several items,
including appropriate level of pre-sales (60%) deposits {10% of entrance fee
per residence) for Independent Living Apartments, financing, feasibility
study, a Guaranteed Maximum Price construction contract with the qualified




construction firm and Board approval. The project was funded with tax-
exempt bonds. The total hard cost construction is estimated to be
approximately $48.5 million. The anticipated entrance fees collected during
fill-up is estimated to be $25.7 million.

Phase B included 68 new independent-living apartments, an underground
parking garage (approx. 71 spaces), and a new chapel (seating for approx.
225). A fitness and wellness satellite area, additional meeting spaces for
continuing education, and surface parking spaces for accessibility to the new
wing are included as part of Phase B,

Phase C included a new building addition for Seabury’s Community
Outreach Services (Seabury At Home, Seabury Visiting Nurses and Seabury
Care Now), Primary Care (rental space), and specialized rehabilitation
services. This addition included a new dedicated entry for health care,
renovation of existing spaces to accommodate updated and new Assisted
Living Apartments (20 one-bedrooms and 2 two-bedrooms (addition of two
apartments), and updated dining, kitchen, and new fitness, living/activity
spaces in Assisted Living.

Phase C also included 12 new short-term rehab private rooms (non-
Medicaid), updated rooms, living/family rooms, salon, dining, and pantry
spaces for skilled nursing. Expansion of the existing Rehab and Therapy
Suite were included. The Clinic Suite was also included in this phase, as
well as a new employee entrance,

Seabury plans to combine 30 West Wing residences (30 to 15 apartments),
which will reduce its overall inventory.

On November 7, 2019, the Board approved the Strategic Plan for the “100”
Cottages, which includes demolishing five cottages, a carport, and a mail
kiosk and constructing two new structures, each containing 12 apartments,
One large Cottage will be turned into a Clubhouse. Paving work on Seabury
Drive will be included as part of this project.

The start of construction is contingent on several items, including the
appropriate level of pre-sales (60%) deposits (10% of the entrance fee per
residence) for Independent Living Apartments, financing, Financial



Consultant’s Report, and Guaranteed Maximum Price construction contract
with a qualified construction firm and Board approval.

It is anticipated the project will be funded with a bank loan. The total project
cost is expected to be approximately $15 million. The anticipated entrance
fees collected during fill-up is estimated to be $10 million. As required by
the bond issue, all first-generation Entrance Fees are pledged to retire the
debt. The remaining $5M will be retired after approximately five years.

Construction of the project will commence in the summer of 2020 and is
scheduled to be completed in the summer of 2021

Approximately $1.3M per year is expected as revenue for these new
residences after the retirement of debt. This project will not negatively
impact monthly service fees.

X. BENEFITS INCL.UDED

Services provided without additional charge under the Life Plan Contract
(Continuing Care Contract) are set forth in the Seabury Residence and Care
Agreement (Exhibit A, Section II).

XI. INTEREST ON DEPOSITS

Reservation fees and all advance partial payments thereof shall earn interest
at the escrow agent’s variable rate. This interest, less the escrow agent’s
processing fees, shall be allocated to Seabury applicants and either refunded
to them or credited to their Seabury account in accordance with the terms of
the Reservation or Residence and Care Agreements,

XI. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

Procedures and terms for termination are described in the Residence and
Care Agreement (Section VII).
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XIII. RIGHTS OF SURVIVING SPOUSE

The rights of a surviving spouse who is a resident of Seabury are get forth in
Section VIII of the Residence and Care Agreement. A surviving spouse who
is not a resident of Seabury has no rights to the services and benefits of a
spouse who is a resident of Seabury (refer to Section III, Item Number 15,
page 9, of the Residence and Care Agreement — Exhibit A).

XIV. MARRIAGE OF A RESIDENT

Section VIII of the Residence and Care Agreement describes the effect of a
resident’s marriage or remarriage on the Life Plan Contract (Continuing
Care Contract).

XV, DISPOSITION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

The Residence and Care Agreement describes the disposition of personal
property in the event of death or transfer to a nursing facility or termination
of the contract by Seabury (refer to Section VI and VII of the Agreement).

XVIL TAX CONSEQUENCES

Seabury is a qualified Type A Life Plan Community (formerly known as a
Continuing Care Retirement Community). Payment of an entrance fee
pursuant to a Life Plan Contract (Continuing Care Contract) may have
significant tax consequences. Any person considering such a payment may
wish to consult a qualified advisor,

XVII. MANAGED RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY
RESIDENTS’ BILL OF RIGHTS

Seabury is registered as a “managed residential community” with the
Connecticut Department of Public Health and therefore may provide the
services of an assisted living services agency at the community. Seabury is
required to provide and explain the Managed Residential Community Bill of
Rights, which is attached in Exhibit F, at the time that you execute this
agreement. You will be asked to separately sign the Bill of Rights to
acknowledge that you have received it.
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XVIII. RESERVE FUNDING AND ESCROWS

RESERVE FUND ESCROW:

Funds have been set aside in an endowment fund with Ziegler Capital
Management, LL.C, with sufficient funds to cover the total cost of operations
of the facility for a one-month period, excluding long-term debt principal
service. Ziegler Capital Management was formed in 1991 as the investment
management division of the Ziegler Companies.

ENTRANCE FEE ESCROW:

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated has established an entrance
fee escrow account with Bank of America, U.S. Trust, Bank of America
Private Wealth Management, 99 Founders Plaza, 5" Floor, Mail Code:
CT2-547-05-19, East Hartford, CT 06108, and will deposit within 72
hours of receipt all deposits, advance payments, and entrance fees
received on behalf of applicants to Seabury. These funds will be
invested as directed by the Investment Committee of Church Home of
Hartford, Incorporated. Refund procedures are described in the
“Termination and Refunds” section of the Residence and Care
Agreement (Exhibit A).

XIX. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Audited and certified financial statements of Church Home of Hartford,
Incorporated, including the current balance sheet, income statements, and
statements of cash flows are provided in Exhibit B.
XX. PRO FORMA INCOME STATEMENTS
The income projected for Seabury for three years is set forth in Exhibit C.

XXI. ENTRANCE FEES/PERIODIC CHARGES

Entrance and monthly fees projected for Seabury are set forth in Exhibit D.
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XXIL. DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES - FILINGS

Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated has filed with the Department of
Social Services all materials required by State Law governing the
Management of Continuing Care Facilities. These materials include a
Disclosure Statement and the Seabury Residence and Care Agreement. These
materials are available for review at the Department of Social Services,
located at 55 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06105-3724.
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EXHIBIT A

RESIDENCE & CARE AGREEMENT
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RESIDENCE AND CARE AGREEMENT

SEABURY

Sponsored by Seabury, Incorporated,

a not-for-profit organization affiliated with

the Episcopal Church in Connecticut

A Life Plan Contract (formerly known as Continuing Care Contract) is a financial
investment, and your investment may be at risk. Seabury's ability to meet its
contractual obligations under such contract depends on Seabury's financial
performance. We advise that you consult an attorney or other professional
experienced in matters relating to investments in Life Plan Communities before
you sign a Life Plan Contract (Continuing Care Contract). The Department of
Social Services does not guarantee the security of your investment.
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SEABURY

RESIDENCE AND CARE AGREEMENT

I. INTRODUCTION

1. General - This is the Residence and Care Agreement between you (whom
we shall refer to as "you") and Church Home of Hartford, Incorporated,
d/b/a Seabury (which we shall refer to as "we," "us," “Seabury,” or the
"facility").

We have divided this Agreement into several parts in order to make it easier
to read and to find any particular part.

2. Acceptance to Seabury

As a condition of residence at Seabury, applicants are required to be at least |
fifty (50) years of age or older, and in good health at the time of occupancy
of an apartment or cottage. You will be required to provide a recent medical i
history and have a physical evaluation within ninety (90) days before
occupancy by medical professionals designated by Seabury. Seabury will
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPPA) of 1996, the HITECH Act of 2009, and amendments under the new
HIPAA Omnibus Rule of 2013. Your consent to share medical information
for the purpose of treatment and billing will be required as a resident of
Seabury. As a further condition of residence at Seabury, applicants are
required to qualify financially immediately prior to occupancy. You or
Seabury may terminate this Agreement prior to occupancy as set forth in
Section VII of this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated for health
reasons, Seabury will assist you and your family to identify possible
alternatives.

3, Term of This Agreement

This Agreement takes effect once all parties have signed it.

Your occupancy of the Reserved Apartment or Cottage will begin on a
scheduled date to which you and Seabury agree in writing, set forth in the
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attached Exhibit A (the "Scheduled Occupancy Date"). You and Seabury
may mutually agree on a different occupancy date.

Regardless of your Scheduled or Actual Occupancy Date, you are not
entitled to Health Services as described in Section IV of this Agreement
until the Entrance Fee has been paid.

This Agreement ceases to be in effect on the date it is terminated in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement (refer to Section VII of this
Agreement). :

Your right to occupancy ends on the Termination Date.

1. OUR RESPONSIBILITIES TO YOU AS A RESIDENT

Seabury shall provide to you the following services and facilities on the conditions
set forth in this Section and Section IV of this Agreement. Unless otherwise
specified, charges for these services are included in the Monthly Fee set forth in
Exhibit A attached to this Agreement (the "Monthly Fee").

L.

Apartment or Cottage - You have the right to occupy and use the apartment
or cottage selected by you and offered by us subject to certain conditions as
hereinafter provided.

Furnishings - We will furnish wall-to-wall carpeting or comparable flooring,
blinds, sink, stove, garbage disposal, refrigerator, dishwasher, microwave,
emergency call system, grab bars in the tub and/or shower, and individual
thermostatic controls for heating and air-conditioning. All other furnishings
shall be provided by you.

Structural Changes - Any structural or physical change of any kind within or
about your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage shall require our prior
approval, and thereafter may be subject to our supervision. The cost of any
changes you request, and the cost of restoring the Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage to original condition upon termination of this
Agreement if deemed necessary by us, shall be at your expense. All built-in
changes shall immediately become and remain the property of the facility.

Parking - One (1) space will be provided for each resident residing in the
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage who owns and uses a properly
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registered and functional automobile. We reserve the right to require you to
remove any automobile that is not being used, or if the condition or
appearance of the automobile is inappropriate.

3. Common Facilities - You may use, in common with other residents,
common facilities of Seabury including but not limited to the dining room,
lounges, lobbies, social and recreation rooms, and designated outdoor
activity areas. There will be additional charges for your use of special
services, such as salon & spa, and convenience store/gift shop.

6. Mail - A mailbox for each Independent Living Apartment or Cottage will be
provided in a central location.

7. Storage - Storage space at a central location will be allocated to your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage. Additional storage is available
for a fee.

8. Guests - You will be free to invite guests to your Independent Living

Apartment or Cottage for daily and overnight visits, Guest rooms are
available at a reasonable rate for overnight stays by your guests from time to
time. Seabury reserves the right to make rules regarding visits and guest
behavior and may limit or terminate a visit at any time for reasons it deems
appropriate in its sole discretion.

9. Food and Meals:

¢ Dining Room and Bistro Service — Seabury provides three (3) meal
plans which are included in the monthly fee:

a) Full-Meal Plan: a meal allowance which is the equivalent of 20
meals per month, in the Main Dining Room. The meal
allowance may also be used for meals in the Bistro. You may
purchase additional meals for an extra charge.

b) Reduced-Meal Plan: a meal allowance which is the equivalent
of ten (10) meals per month, in the Main Dining Room. The
meal allowance may also be used for meals in the Bistro. A
credit for ten (10) meals will be provided per month. You may
purchase additional meals for an extra charge.
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When you give Seabury advance notice that you are going to be away
from Seabury for more than seven (7) consecutive days, you will be
credited for the missed meals, according to a schedule periodically
published by Seabury (the “Away Meal Credit”). The Away Meal
Credit only applies to the Full-Meal Plan and the Reduced-Meal
Plans.

¢) No-Meal Plan: a credit based on 50% of the raw food costs will
be applied to the monthly fee. Meals in the Main Dining Room
will be charged at the full rate. Meals in the Bistro are on an
ala-carte basis.

Seabury will periodically publish a schedule of “meal rates” to
establish the cost of such additional meals. You may purchase
Marketplace grocery items separately.

Meals in Independent Living Apartment or Cottages - Tray service is
available to you in your independent Apartment or Cottage for an
additional charge.

Dietary Service - When authorized by us, meals accommodating
special diets will be provided at an additional charge.

Dining Room Services for Guests - Dining room and Bistro service
will be available to your guests. Guests will be charged for meals at
the currently published meal rate and charges for such meals will be
applied toward your Full or Reduced Meal Plans or will be included in
your monthly service charge statement (referred to as the “Monthly
Statement”).

10. Housekeeping - Housekeeping services shall be provided in your

Independent Living Apartment or Cottage by Seabury on a bi-weekly basis.
These housekeeping services include vacuuming, floor maintenance,
necessary cleaning of bathroom and kitchen, and other such tasks we deem
necessary under the circumstances. Additional housekeeping services are
available for a fee.

11. Laundry - Seabury will provide washers and dryers for your use.
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12.  Security - Seabury will use reasonable care in providing security on the
premises for you and your property, but will not be responsible for loss or
damage to personal property. You should maintain private insurance on
your own property.

13.  Programs - Seabury will provide programs of social and recreational
events/activities. Religious services will be available for interested persons,
There may be an additional charge for some programs.

14,  Transportation - Seabury will provide regularly scheduled local
transportation to doctors' appointments and shopping. This does not include
transportation for dialysis or frequent appointments recurring over a set
period of time. Residents will be charged for transportation to off-gite
Physicians or other, non-nursing health professionals if services are provided
at Seabury. There is no obligation to use the Clinic or the Clinic Physicians
or staff. You remain free to engage the services of the physician or other
health professionals of your choice at your expense. If a private aide is
necessary to accompany you for transport, you will be charged. Additional
special transportation for personal or group use and trips will be available at
an additional cost.

15. Maintenance and Repair - Necessary repairs, maintenance, and replacement
of property and equipment owned by Seabury, wherever located, will be
performed and provided by us. Necessary repairs, maintenance, and
replacement of your personal property will be your responsibility.

16. Grounds - We will furnish basic grounds-keeping care, including lawn
service. You, at your own expense, may plant and maintain areas designated
by Seabury, subject to the prior written approval of Seabury administration.

17.  Utilities - Seabury shall provide utilities such as water, heating, electricity,
air conditioning, Wi-Fi access to internet, and expanded basic cable TV
service (this service is not included when residing at Seabury Meadows) to
the extent that such utilities are available to us. You shall be required to
have telephone service in your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage
and will be responsible for the costs of its connection, maintenance, and use.
You will be responsible for the cost of installing, maintaining, and using any
cable TV beyond basic expanded cable including any personal Internet
services.
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18.

19.

Real Bstate Taxes - Seabury will be responsible for the payment of all real
estate taxes assessed on the facility.

Medical Director - Seabury will retain the services of a qualified physician
("Medical Director") to be responsible for the appropriateness and quality of
all health services and health-related activities provided by Seabury.

1. YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS A RESIDENT

Commencing Occupancy - You agree that, unless this Agreement is
terminated by you or Seabury prior to occupancy, you will commence
occupancy of the Reserved Apartment or Cottage by the scheduled
occuparncy date set forth in the attached Exhibit A (the “Reserved Apartment
or Cottage” and the “Scheduled Occupancy Date”). If Seabury is unable to
make the Reserved Apartment or Coltage available on the Scheduled
Occupancy Date, a revised Scheduled Occupancy Date shall be established
by written, mutual agreement. If you fail to occupy the available Reserved
Apartment or Cottage by the Scheduled Occupancy Date, you shall
nevertheless become obligated on that date to begin and continue to pay the
Monthly Fee applicable for your Reserved Apartment or Cottage less the
published Meal Credit.

Policies, Rules, and Regulations - You agree to abide by the policies, rules
and regulations of Seabury, including such changes as may be subsequently
adopted. These policies will be set forth in a Resident Handbook and will be
made available to you through the management of Seabury.

Rights of Residents - Your rights as a resident under this Agreement are
those rights and privileges expressly granted to you in this Agreement or by
Connecticut law.

Right of Entry - You shall permit authorized employees entry into your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage at all reasonable times for
inspection, housekeeping and maintenance, and at any time in case of
emergencies. Seabury recognizes your right to privacy and will limit entry
to your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage except in case of
emergencies and as described above.

Real Property - Your rights and privileges, as granted herein, do not include
any right, title or interest whether legal, equitable, beneficial or otherwise, in
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or to any part of the real property, including land, buildings, and
improvements owned or operated by Seabury.

6.  Subordination of Rights - Seabury shall not subordinate your escrowed
Entrance Fee payments to any other obligations of the facility except as
allowed in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 17b-525.
As set forth in Section V of this Agreement, escrowed Entrance Fees are
released to Seabury upon your Actual or Scheduled Occupancy Date,
whichever first occurs.

Except for the terms stated above for escrowed Entrance Fee payments, any
of your rights, privileges or benefits arising under this Agreement shall be
subordinate and inferior to all mortgages, sccurity interests, deeds of trust
and leasehold interests granted to secure any loans or advances made to
Seabury, its related entities, or its successors, now outstanding or made in
the future, in the real property and improvements constituting Seabury, and
subordinate and inferior to all amendments, modifications, replacements,
refunding or refinancing thereof. You agree that, upon the request of
Seabury, you will execute and deliver any and all documents, which are
alleged to be necessary, or required to effect or evidence such subordination.

7. Responsibility for Damages - You will be responsible for any costs incurred
in replacing, maintaining, or repairing any loss or damage to the real or
personal property of Seabury caused by the negligence or willful misconduct
of you, your guests, agents, employees, or pet. You are strongly encouraged
to obtain insurance at your own expense to cover this obligation.

8.  Protection of Personal Property - Seabury is not responsible for the loss of
any personal property belonging to you due to theft, fire or any other cause,
unless said property is specifically entrusted in writing to our care and
control and accepted by us, and then only for our gross negligence in failing
to safeguard and account for such property. You will maintain personal-
property insurance for the purpose of protecting against such losses. In the
case where insurance has not been maintained, Seabury is not responsible
for replacement of personal property.

0. Indemnification - You will indemnify Seabury and hold it harmless for any
injury to other residents, employees, or any third person, which arises from
your negligent or intentional action. You may wish to obtain insurance at
your own expense to cover this obligation.
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10. Medicare, Supplemental Insurance Requirements and Third-party
Reimbursement - You are, or shall be when eligible, enrolled in Medicare
Part A, Medicare Part B, and Medicare Part D, or their equivalent. You
authorize, as necessary, any provider of such medical and other health
services, including Seabury, to receive reimbursement under Medicare Part
A, Medicare Part B and Medicare Part D or their equivalent as provided
under these programs. You are required to secure and maintain a
supplemental insurance policy (such as Blue Cross, Medicare, Extended
Major Medical) to pay Medicare co-insurance deductible amounts and to
provide major medical coverage, or show evidence of your ability to meet
your future obligations to Seabury. This coverage is not provided by
Seabury.  If you are not eligible for Medicare programs, you agree to
obtain and maintain equivalent insurance coverage acceptable to Seabury.

You agree to furnish evidence of your medical insurance coverage at any
time upon our request. All changes to insurance plans must be reported to
Seabury within 30 days of the change and copies of insurance card(s) with
the policy information provided within the same time frame.

Should your supplemental coverage or equivalent health coverage not fully
cover a Medicare-qualified stay at Seabury, or should you fail to purchase
supplemental coverage or equivalent health coverage to fully cover such a
Medicare-qualified stay, you will be financially responsible for paying
deductibles, co-insurance amounts, and any other charges for ecach
Medicare-qualified stay.

The aforementioned insurance requirements must be maintained throughout
the term of this Agreement. If you do not comply with the aforementioned
insurance requirements at any time during the term of this Agreement, you
acknowledge and agree that Seabury shall have the right to, as permitted by
applicable law, bill you directly for services not reimbursed by insurance.

If at any time you become entitled to payments for health services from
governmental agencies, you agree to make prompt application for such
payments. Seabury will not be responsible for the cost of any health care for
which you are entitled to reimbursement from a governmental agency or
another third-party, i.e. workers’ compensation, liability or PIP (personal
injury protection), no-fault insurance, etc. You agree that upon receiving
third-party reimbursement, you will repay Seabury for any third-party
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IT.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

reimbursable costs, which Seabury incurred or paid on your behalf while
your reimbursement approval was pending.

Seabury will assist you in submitting an application for health services or
benefits under any programs for which you might qualify. In addition,
Seabury will assist you in filing claims for payment for services rendered by
Seabury. Upon request, you agree to execute an assignment of benefits to
Seabury.

Furnishings - You will be responsible for furnishing your Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage. All furniture and appliances provided by you
are subject to our approval in order to keep the Independent Living
Apartment or Cottages safe and sanitary,

Linens - You will provide your own bed and bath linens.

Housekeeping - You agree to maintain your Independent Living Apartment
or Cottage in a clean, safe and orderly condition, in conformance with all
applicable health regulations, and to perform all usual light housckeeping.
You further agree to arrange for the performance of light housekeeping at
your own expense in the event Seabury determines, in Seabury's sole
discretion, that you are unable or unwilling to perform such tasks yourself.
Special housekeeping services will be provided by Seabury in the event of
incidents such as spills or accidents, at an additional charge to you.

Right to Organize - Residents shall have the right to organize and operate a
residents' association at Seabury, and shall have the right to meet privately to
conduct business as an association. The officers of the Residents'
Association shall serve as a liaison between the residents and Seabury.
Seabury shall hold meetings with the residents for the purpose of free
discussion of subjects of interest. Notice of meetings will be posted.

Non-Transferable - Your rights under this Agreement to the Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage, facilities and services provided for herein are
personal to you and cannot be transferred or assigned by you to any other
person or entity.

Preservation of Your Assets - You agree to manage your financial resources
so as not to threaten or impair your ability or the ability of your estate to
satisfy the financial obligations set forth in this Agreement. At the request
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17.

I8.

19.

20,

of Seabury, you agree to make arrangements for the preservation and
management of vour financial resources by a third party (or parties),
including but not limited to the execution and funding of a trust agreement
for your benefit whenever, in the sole judgment of Seabury, it appears that
the continued management of your financial affairs may make you unable to
meet your financial obligations to Seabury. Failure to comply with the
requirements of this Paragraph may cause you to be ineligible for the
subsidy assistance described in Section V, Paragraph 5 of this Agreement.

Financial Statements - Just as you have provided to Seabury a financial
statement as part of the admissions process, you agree to continue to provide
financial statements, including copies of your federal, state and gift tax
returns, insurance information, or other financially related information as
requested by Seabury.

Representations Made by You in Connection With Application for
Residency - Your application and the statements of your finances and health
history which you filed with Seabury are incorporated into this Agreement,
and all statements therein are deemed to be true as of the date made. You
represent and warrant that there have been no material changes in the
information provided since the date of application.  Any material
misstatement, or any material omission to state a fact called for, may result
in the termination of this Agreement by Seabury.

Power of Attorney - You agree to execute and maintain in effect a limited
Duarable Power of Attorney valid under Connecticut law. This Power of
Attorney shall designate, as your attorney-in-fact, a bank, lawyer, relative, or
other responsible person or persons of your choice to act for you in
managing your financial affairs and filing for your insurance or other
benefits, as fully and completely as you would if acting personally. It shall
be in a form which survives your incapacity or disability and is otherwise
satisfactory to Seabury. You will deliver a fully executed copy of this
Power of Attorney to us prior to occupancy of your Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage.

Pets - Pets or animals of any kind will be allowed on the premises only in
strictest compliance with Seabury's written policies and with the prior
written consent of the facility. Seabury retains the right to modify pet
policies at any time as it deems necessary, to assure the safety and comfort
of all residents. If you have a pet in your Independent Living Apartment or

SEABURY 1-19 10 of 39



21.

22.

23.

Cottage, you agree to pay for the cost of replacing the carpeting in your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage as required by Seabury in its sole
discretion, and for the cost of repairing any damage to the Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage caused by your pet.

Smoke-Free Campus — You agree to maintain a smoke-free environment
including your apartment, cottage or anywhere on campus in accordance
with Seabury’s smoke-free policy. You are responsible for your guests and
will ensure that they adhere to this policy when at Seabury.

Firearm Possession — You agree to abide by Seabury’s strict policy of a gun
free environment, which includes possession of firearms or ammunition in
your residence or on the Seabury Campus. You are responsible for your
guests and will ensure their strict adherence to this policy when at Seabury.
Failure to comply with the requirements of this paragraph may result in the
termination of this agreement by Seabury.

Funeral Arrangements — You agree to make proper arrangements for funeral
and burial. We will not be responsible for making such arrangements. You
agree that Seabury shall be reimbursed by your estate for any expenses
incurred by Seabury for such arrangements.

IV. HEALTH SERVICES

Health Services - Comprised of the Davis Center and the Brewer Center
(skilled nursing - long-term care), and the Larus Center (skilled nursing —
short-term rehabilitation), the Views (assisted living/residential care), and
Seabury Meadows (assisted living Memory Support Center). When you
receive health services in any of the above-named areas, you will continue to
pay the Monthly Fee and additional charges according to your selected fee
plan.

When in the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus Center or
Seabury Meadows, you will be served three meals per day and agree to pay
such additional charges as may be due thereby. When in the Views, you
agree to pay such additional charges for additional meals beyond 20 meals
per month and occupying a larger studio, one-bedroom, or two-bedroom
apartment. There is no additional charge for special diets in the Davis
Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus Center.
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In the rare event that space for you is not available in the Davis Center, the
Brewer Center, the Larus Center or Seabury Meadows, Seabury will arrange
and pay for your temporary care in another skilled nursing facility or
memory care facility that can provide such care until space becomes
available. Your Monthly Fee will continue to be payable according to your
fee plan, and you will be liable for any additional charges imposed by the
other skilled nursing facility or memory care facility that would be payable
under the terms of this Agreement governing charges while a resident of the
Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center or Seabury Meadows.
Seabury will not be responsible for any injury or damages that you may
sustain or incur while you are receiving temporary care in another skilled
nursing facility or memory care facility. If space is not available in the
Views (assisted living/residential care), temporary care may be arranged at
your expense.

2. Health Services Available in Your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage
Health services will be provided in your Independent Living Apartment or
Cottage only in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

3. The Health Clinic - Seabury will provide a Health Clinic (the "Clinic") on
the premises where residents may be examined and treated as outpatients.
Arrangements will be made for one or more physicians selected by Seabury
{(the "Clinic Physicians") to keep scheduled office hours at the Clinic. There
1s no fee for appointments with the Clinic nursing staff, however, additional
charges are made for supplies and treatments (for example, administration of
eye drops, injections, and dressing changes) as set forth in the schedule of
charges for Assisted Living Services. Residents will be charged for office
visits to the Clinic Physicians or other, non-nursing health professionals at
the Clinic. There is no obligation to use the Clinic or the Clinic Physicians
or staff. You remain free to engage the services of the physician or other
health professionals of your choice at your expense.

4. Emergency and Other Care in Your Independent Living Apartment or
Cottage - Seabury's security staff and nursing staff, if required, will be
available to provide emergency assistance in your Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage in accordance with Seabury's policies governing the
provision of such care by our staff.

Subject to approval by the Medical Director, temporary health care services
and oversight by our Clinic nursing staff may be provided in your
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Independent Living Apartment or Cottage in cases of temporary illness at no
charge to you.

Subject to our approval and the approval of the Medical Director, home
health agency services and assisted living services may be arranged at your
request and at your expense, to provide home health or assisted living
services on a scheduled and intermittent basis in your Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage. Some home health agency services may be covered
by Medicare or supplemental insurance. In the event that you are in need of
frequent or continuous supervision or health services, you will be transferred
to the appropriate level of care in accordance with the provisions of Section
VI of this Agreement. You have the right to have scheduled and intermittent
home health services provided by the licensed home health agency of your
choice.

You may arrange to employ licensed private duty nurses, certified nurses’
aides or companions provided, however, such nurses, aides, and companions
may not be employed for continuous care or supervision in your Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage. You will pay all expenses, including meals,
for your employees, who will be subject to all rules and regulations of
Seabury. The employment of private duty nurses, aides, and companions
requires Seabury's prior approval and must be in compliance with Seabury’s
private duty policy.

5.  Therapy Services - You or your medical insurance will pay for all therapy
and ancillary health services. Seabury may make arrangements for the
services of a physical therapist, occupational therapist, podiatrist, or other
therapy and ancillary health professionals to be available on the premises by
appointment, but you are free to engage the services of the therapy and
ancillary health professionals of your choice at their offices.

6.  Hospital Coverage and Transfer Agreements - Seabury is not obligated to
pay any charges for hospitalization or costs related thereto. In the event it
becomes necessary for you to be transferred to a hospital, Seabury will
provide the information necessary to meet the provisions of any hospital
admissions agreement, and you agree that Seabury has the right to provide
such information, which may include part or all of your medical records.

Seabury is not designed or staffed to care for persons afflicted with certain
diseases or conditions: for example, psychosis, substance abuse/addiction,
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contagious disease or certain types of subacute care. If you require care for
a disease or condition which Seabury determines: a) it cannot properly treat,
or b) is a potential danger to the health and welfare of other residents or
staff, you agree that Scabury has the authority, after consultations described
in the transfer provisions of this Agreement, to transfer you elsewhere for
hospitalization or nursing care as may be deemed necessary by the Medical
Director, whether or not the condition is deemed to be temporary in nature.
If the transfer is deemed permanent by the Medical Director, your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage may be released and refunds
made in accordance with the termination provisions of this Agreement.

7. Exclusions - You agree to-pay the costs of the following services, whether
provided at Seabury or elsewhere, to the extent that they are not covered by
other insurance or assistance programs.

charges of any physician, APRN, podiatrist, chiropractor, or therapist;

e prescription drugs and medical supplies;

° vision, hearing, and dental care, including all supplies, equipment, and
appliances;

@ orthopedic appliances;

® mental health and substance abuse services;

® ancillary charges imposed by any outside health provider or
institution;

@ other health-related costs which are customarily considered extra

charges by facilities providing services similar to those provided by
the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus Center or the

Views;
° intravenous (IV) insertion;
e ventilator care;
® ambulance and other specialized medical transportation services,

including the cost of a private aide, if needed, for transport.

In addition, you may require intensive subacute rehabilitative or other
subacute care that Seabury does not customarily provide in the Davis Center,
the Brewer Center and the Larus Center. Because the need for such care
may involve a wide variety of conditions and circumstances that cannot be
specified in advance in all cases, Seabury reserves the right to determine, in
Seabury's sole discretion, whether it is able to provide such care in the Davis
Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus Center, in any individual case and
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to require placement in another facility as appropriate. Usually, such care is
covered by Medicare, Medicare managed care or supplemental insurance.
To the extent that such care is not covered by such insurance, you are
responsible for any charges for such care.

8. Illness or Injury Away from Seabury - In the event you suffer an illness or
injury while away from Seabury, we shall have no responsibility to pay for
your health care or nursing care resulting from such illness or injury unless
such care is first authorized by Seabury after consultation with the treating
physician. However, after you return to Seabury, we shall assume the
responsibility to provide those services deemed necessary by your physician
and by the Medical Director, in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, you shall be considered to be
away from Seabury if the injury or illness occurs when you are not within a
twenty (20) mile radius of the facility.

V. EEES

1. Statement of Fees - The Entrance Fee and Monthly Fee set forth in attached
Exhibit A represent payment for the services to be provided by Seabury
under this Agreement.

2. Fees - The Reservation Fee and Entrance Fee for the Reserved Apartment or
Cottage shall be determined and payable as follows:

® The Reservation Fee shall equal five or ten percent (5% or 10%) of
the Entrance Fee set forth in Exhibit A. It shall be paid before
execution of this Residence and Care Agreement and will be credited
to the total Entrance Fee.

® Any additional partial advance payments ("Advance Payments") will
be credited to the total Entrance Fee.

e The balance of the Entrance Fee shall be due and payable at or before
your Actual or Scheduled Occupancy Date, whichever first occurs.

® Checks for all fees should be made payable to Seabury.
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3. Escrow of Fees - All Reservation Fees and Advance Payments received from
you shall be deposited within 72 hours of receipt with the facility's escrow
agent (the "Escrow Agent"), which 1s:

U.S. Trust, Bank of America Private Wealth Management
99 Founders Plaza, 5 Floor

Mail Code: CT2-547-05-19

East Hartford, CT 06108

All Reservation Fees and Advance Payments received and held by the
Escrow Agent shall earn interest at the Escrow Agent's current variable
market rate. Such interest, less the Escrow Agent's processing fees, shall be
allocated to you and refunded or credited to you in accordance with Section
V1 of this Agreement. In some instances, processing fees could be greater
than mnterest carned.

You shall be responsible for any taxes due on payments or credits of interest
paid.

All Reservation Fees and Advance Payments deposited with the Escrow
Agent are released to Seabury as of the Actual or Scheduled Occupancy
Date, whichever first occurs. Interest earned on your Reservation Fee and
Advance Payments, less the Escrow Agent's processing fees, will be credited
to your Seabury account as of that date. After that date, any interest on these
amounts that you have paid will accrue to Seabury’s benefit.

4. Monthly Fees -~ You agree to pay Seabury the total Monthly Fee in advance
on or before the fifth day of each month beginning with the Actual or
Scheduled Occupancy Date, whichever first occurs. The Monthly Fee shall
be prorated for any applicable period of less than one month. The Monthly
Fee may be adjusted by Seabury at the sole discretion of Seabury upon at
least sixty (60) days' advance written notice to you.

Seabury will endeavor to maintain the Monthly Fee at the lowest possible
rate consistent with sound financial practice and maintenance of the quality
of services, including health care services called for herein, but we may
exercise our discretion to increase the Monthly Fee periodically. When we
decide to adjust periodic charges on other recurring fees, we will provide
you with at least thirty (30) days advance written notice of any increase in
fees. You agree to pay the adjusted fee.
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You agree to pay the Monthly Fee whether you are residing in your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage, the Davis Center, the Brewer
Center, the Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows, or in another
facility as set forth in Section IV of this Agreement.

If you are fransferred after first occupancy to an Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage for which the Monthly Fee is less than the Monthly
Fee applicable to your original Independent Living Apartment or Cottage,
the lower Monthly Fee will be charged while you reside in the smaller
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage. Upon your transfer to the Davis
Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury
Meadows, the Monthly Fee payable while you are a resident of the Davis
Center and the Brewer Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows, will be the
Monthly Fee for the Independent Living Apartment or Cottage you occupied
for the longest period of time prior to entering the Health Services area.

You will be invoiced monthly for any items and services provided for you
that Seabury is not obligated to provide as part of your Monthly Fee, and
you must pay those invoices within five days after receipt.

You agree to pay Seabury interest at reasonable rates, which we shall
establish for overdue Monthly Fees and service charges.

Subsidy Assistance - If your funds become substantially reduced or depleted,
and your income reduced to the extent that you are eligible to receive public
benefits, including, but not limited to, Social Security Supplemental Income,
Medicaid, etc., you agree to apply for these entitlements for benefits.
Failure to do so may result in the termination of this Agreement by Seabury
and release of its obligations hereunder. In the event that you are unable to
meet your financial obligations to Seabury after qualifying for all available
public benefits, Seabury will continue to provide the services to which you
are entitled under this Agreement, but may require you to move to a smaller
or less costly accommodation in order to reduce the cost of uncompensated
services. Uncompensated services will be provided only to the extent and
for as long as Seabury deems the provision of such services to be consistent
with the objectives of Seabury and its prudent financial management of
Seabury. The total cumulative amount of uncompensated services and other
subsidies provided to you by Seabury shall be deducted from any refund due
to you or your estate upon termination of this Agreement.
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VI. TRANSFER FROM YOUR INDEPENDENT

LIVING APARTMENT OR COTTAGE OR HEALTH SERVICES AREA

There may come a time when you must move from your Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage to the Health Services area (the Davis Center, the Brewer
Center, the Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows) or to another facility as
provided in Section IV of this Agreement. We are aware that this is a critical
transition and will follow the following procedures during any transfer:

1.

Consultations - Except in case of emergency, Seabury agrees not to transfer
you from your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage or the Davis
Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury
Meadows for health-related or other reasons unless we have consulted with
you, or with anyone else you designate as a primary contact. In the case of
an emergency transfer, the consultations described above will be scheduled
by Seabury within ten days after the transfer.

Consents - When Seabury determines it to be appropriate, after consultations
called for in the above Paragraph, to transfer you from your Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage to another Independent Living Apartment or
Cottage, to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center, the
Views, or Seabury Meadows, or to a suitable public or private facility for
hospitalization, subacute or nursing care, or other health-related services,
Seabury shall have the authority and right to transfer you without having to
obtain your consent.

In the event Seabury determines that your continued occupancy of your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage constitutes a danger to other
residents or to yourself, violates the terms of this Agreement, or is
detrimental to the peace or health of other residents, or to your health,
Seabury shall have full authority to transfer you to another Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage, to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the
Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows, or to another suitable public
or private facility without having to obtain your further consent.

Seabury shall determine, in its sole discretion, whether a transfer is
appropriate.
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3. Temporary Transfer - When Seabury determines that the condition which
requires your transfer has the potential to be resolved in a manner which
may allow you to return to your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage
within sixty (60) days from the date of the transfer, the Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage will be held for your return. If Seabury initiated your
transfer, the return to your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage is
subject to the approval of Seabury. You agree to pay the Monthly Fee
applicable to your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage during any
temporary absence.

4. Permanent Transfer - When Seabury determines that the condition which
required your transfer is not temporary in nature, your Independent Living
Apariment, Cottage, or Views apartment shall be released and made
available to a new resident.

You agree to the removal of your property from the Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage, Views apartment, or storage room within fifteen (15}
days of permanent transfer. If after fifteen days your furniture and personal
belongings remain in any of the areas listed above, you will continue to pay
the monthly fee and be responsible for all additional charges for room and
services in the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center, the
Views, or Seabury Meadows. In addition, you will also pay your current
monthly fee for the Apartment or Cottage or room until such property is
removed. After 30 days, the facility may store such property at your
expense for 60 days, after which such property may be disposed of without
liability.

5. Relocation or Transfer from one Independent Living Apartment or Cottage
to another Independent Living Apartment or Cottage by a resident shall be
handled in the following manner:

a. Prospects and residents will be given priority status on the Priority Wait
List by date of their request. This request must be made in writing.

b. Entry Fee: If the resident requests a move to a more expensive
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage than the one presently
occupied, he or she must pay the difference between the current entry fee
of the more expensive Independent Living Apartment or Cottage and the
current entry fee of the Independent Living Apartment or Cotiage
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presently occupied. In the case of new construction, the resident must pay
the difference between the original entrance fee paid and the current
entrance fee for the new apartment, cottage or villa. If the resident
chooses to downsize to a less expensive Independent Apartment or
Cottage, there will be no refund or market rate adjustment on the entry
fee. There will be no adjustment at all for a move to the same size
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage. It should be noted that for fee
plans that have a 2% amortization schedule on the entry fee, there will
not be a new amortization on any additional entry fee payments. The
additional entry fee will be amortized from the original occupancy date.

c. Monthly Fees: If you transfer after first occupancy to a larger or smaller
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage, you will be charged the
current monthly fee on the Independent Living Apartment or Cottage to
which you have transferred. Upon your transfer to the Davis Center, the
Brewer Center, the Larus Center, the Views, or Scabury Meadows, the
Monthly Fee payable while you are a resident of the above Health
Services area will be the Monthly Fee for the Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage you occupied for the longest period of time prior to
entering the Health Services area.

d. Relocation Fee: When transferring to another Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage, there will be a charge of one month’s rental fee at
the previous Independent Living Apartment or Cottage rate. The reason
for this additional charge is to cover the loss of revenue to Seabury while
refurbishing two Independent Living Apartments or Cottages.

e. If a resident requests a move for health reasons, this request must be
approved by Seabury’s Medical Director, Vice President of Health
Services, and the Admissions Committee in order to qualify for
immediate relocation.

VII. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT; REFUNDS

1. Termination By You Prior to the Scheduled Occupancy Date - You have
certain rights as set forth in this Paragraph regarding termination of this
Agreement between the date this Agreement is executed by you and your
Actual or Scheduled Occupancy date, whichever first occurs (the "Statutory
Rescission Period™).
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You may terminate this Agreement for any reason within thirty (30) days
following the date you signed this Agreement without penalty of forfeiture,
You are not required to move to Seabury before the expiration of this thirty-
day period.

From thirty (30) days following the execution of this Agreement until the
end of the Statutory Rescission Period, you may terminate this Agreement
due to death, illness, injury or incapacity that prevents you from occupying
your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement.

You must provide Seabury timely written notice via registered or certified
mail of termination pursuant to this Paragraph. If the termination is due to
death, illness, injuty, or incapacity, Seabury reserves the right to require you
to provide information to validate your claim that you arec prevented from
occupying the Reserved Apartment or Cottage.

Within sixty (60) days of Seabury's receipt of your written notice or
acceptance of your claim as validated, Seabury will refund to you your
Reservation Fee and Advance Payments, if any, together with accrued
interest, less any processing fees charged by the Escrow Agent.

Seabury reserves the right to deduct from any refund due pursuant to this
Paragraph (a) a processing fee of one thousand dollars ($1,000) or two
percent (2%) of the Entrance Fee, whichever is greater and (b) any costs
specifically incurred by Seabury on your behalf and in accordance with your
written request.

If you terminate your Agreement pursuant to this Paragraph, Seabury shall,
at its option, have the right to reassign the Reserved Apartment or Cottage,
and you then have no further right to the Reserved Apartment or Cottage.

2, Termination By You After the Actual or Scheduled Occupancy Date - You
may terminate this Agreement after your Actual or Scheduled Occupancy
Date by giving written notice to Seabury by registered or certified mail no
less than thirty (30) days prior to termination.

This Agreement shall terminate upon your death.
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Any Entrance Fee refund due to you will be made in accordance with
Paragraph 6, or Paragraph 7, or Paragraph 8 of this Section, as applicable.

3. Termination by Seabury - Seabury shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement for any cause, which, in its sole discretion, shall be good and
sufficient. Good and sufficient cause shall include, but is not limited to, the

following:
® You are not accepted by Seabury due to financial or medical reasons;
® Failure to perform your obligations under this Agreement, including

the obligation to pay the Monthly Fees and other charges within
ninety (90) days after they are due for payment;

® Failure to abide by the rules and regulations of Seabury, including
such reasonable amendments as may be adopted from time to time;

® Material misstatements or failure to state a material fact in your
application, financial statement, or health history statement filed with
Seabury;

e Digsipation or commitment of your financial resources in a

discretionary manner which impairs your ability to meet your
financial obligation to Seabury;

° Permanent transfer to another public or private institution;

® Your behavior resulting in a threat to the safety, health, peace, or
wellbeing of yourself or others,

Seabury shall give you reasonable notice of termination in writing via hand
delivery, registered, or certified mail. Seabury's determination that your
continued occupancy presents a threat to the safety of others or of yourself
shall be a factor in determining the reasonableness of that notice period.

4, Conditions of Refund and Duties Upon Termination - If we terminate this
Agreement prior to your Actual or Scheduled Occupancy date, whichever
shall first occur, refund of your Reservation Fee and Advance Payments, if
any, will be made in accordance with Paragraph 1 of this Section. If we or
you terminate this Agreement after the Actual or Scheduled Occupancy
Date, the refund of the portion of the Entrance Fee to which you are entitled
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shall promptly be due to you in accordance with the provisions of
Paragraphs 6, 7 or 8 of this Section. At the sole discretion of Seabury,
payment of the refund may be made contingent on the reservation or
occupancy of your Independent Living Apartment or Cottage by a new
resident. If Seabury does require such a contingency, we will pay the refund
no later than three years from the Termination Date.

Monthly Fees are to be paid through the Termination Date and for any part
of a month in which your furnishings or belongings remain in your
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage or Health Services room. In no
event shall Seabury be obligated to refund more than one month's payment
of the Monthly Fee. No refund of any portion of the Entrance Fee shall be
due as a result of your transfer to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the
Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows, or to another institution or
facility unless this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms,

Upon termination by either you or Seabury, you agree to pay Seabury all
amounts owed to it and any reasonable expenses incurred in connection with
the termination, including, but not limited to:

® Costs of any repairs or replacement of property assigned to your use;

® Painting or other refurbishments of your Living Apartment or Cottage
in excess of that required by normal wear;

® The cumulative amount of any uncompensated services or other
subsidies provided to you by Seabury.

Seabury may deduct any amounts owed it by you against any refund due.

Timely notice of termination by you after your Actual or Scheduled
Occupancy Date must be given by hand delivery or registered, or certified
mail. The notice must specify the Termination Date.

5. Removal of Property - You agree to the removal of your property from the
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage or room within fifteen (15) days
after termination of the Agreement. After 15 days, the facility will store
such property at your or your estate's expense for thirty days, after which it
may be disposed of without liability.
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0. Provisions Applicable for 0% Plan Refund Option - If you have selected the
0% Plan Refund Option as shown on the attached Exhibit A, no refund shall
be due to you or your estate,

If Seabury terminates this Agreement after your Actual or Scheduled
Occupancy Date, you or your estate shall be due a refund equal to the
amount of the Entrance Fee less one percent thereof for each calendar month
between the date you signed this Agreement and the Termination Date. No
refund shall be due if Seabury terminates this Agreement more than one
hundred months after the date you signed this Agreement.

7. Provisions Applicable for Plan 67% Refund Option - If you have selected
the Plan 67% Refund Option as shown on the attached Exhibit A, you or
your estate shall be due a refund equal to sixty-seven percent (67%) of the
Entrance Fee upon termination by you or by Secabury after the Actual or
Scheduled Occupancy Date.

8. Provisions Applicable for Plan 80% Refund Option - If you have selected
Plan 80% as shown on Exhibit A, you or your estate shall be due a refund
equal to 80% of the entrance fee if you or your spouse have never
transitioned to another level of care on a temporary or permanent basis.

If you transition to ancther level of care, you will continue to pay the
Monthly Fee. You will also be responsible for the difference between the
Monthly Fee and the private pay charges then in effect for the Views
(assisted living), Seabury Meadows (assisted living Memory Support
Center), or the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the Larus Center (skilled
nursing) determined by the level in which you are residing (unless your care
is paid for by Medicare). The difference between your Monthly Fee and the
cost of Assisted Living, Seabury Meadows or Skilled Nursing will be
deducted from your 80% refund. Maintaining your Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage while residing in a different level of care will
necessitate additional fees.

Limit of Financial Responsibility: If your 80% Entrance Fee refund is
exhausted by deductions for health care charges, you will then need to pay
only the Monthly Fee for your Apartment or Cottage (or previous Apartment
or Cottage) in Independent Living, plus additional meal charges.
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Under Plan 80%, deductions from your 80% Entrance Fee refund for health
care charges will be computed as described below:

a. Permanent Transfer to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the
Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows

If you transition to the Views (assisted living), Seabury Meadows (assisted
living Memory Support Center), or the Davis Center, the Brewer Center and
the Larus Center (skilled nursing) and no longer have an assigned
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage, you will continue to pay the
Monthly Fee for your previous Independent Living Apartment or Cottage.
Charges for the Views (assisted living), Seabury Meadows (assisted living
Memory Support Center), or the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, and the
Larus Center (skilled nursing) in excess of your Monthly Fee will be
deducted from our 80% Entrance Fee refund (unless your care is paid for by
Medicare).

b. Temporary Transfer to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, and the |
Larus Center (skilled nursing)

If you receive care in the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus
Center (skilled nursing) temporarily (i.e., you maintain your Independent
Living Apattment or Cottage and are expected to return to it), you will
continue to pay your Monthly Fee. The full charges for care in the Davis
Center, the Brewer Center, and the Larus Center (skilled nursing) will be
deducted from your 80% Entrance Fee refund (unless your care is paid for
by Medicare).

¢. Shared Apartment or Cottages
The terms described above also apply to persons who share an Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage; however, the total Monthly Fee due fo

Seabury will continue to include the Second Person Fee.

VIIL. CO-RESIDENTS' RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Co-residents - Residents who will occupy the same Independent Living
Apartment or Cottage ("Co-residents") shall each sign a separate Residence
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and Care Agreement with Seabury. Under the terms of this Agreement,
married couples shall have rights and obligations identical to those of any
other Co-residents.

2. Joint Liability - Each Co-resident shall be jointly and severally liable for all
payments, which shall be due under the terms of this Agreement.

3. Termination of Agreement with One Co-resident - In the event that the
Agreement of one Co-resident terminates for any reason, the total Entrance
Fee shall be deemed to have been paid on behalf of the remaining resident,
whose Agreement shall remain in effect. Any refund of Entrance Fee paid
for Co-residents will be refunded for the benefit of the remaining resident, or
their estate upon termination of the Agreement with the remaining resident
subject to Section VII of this Agreement.

When the Agreement of one Co-resident terminates, the remaining resident
shall have the option for a period of thirty (30) days thereafter to elect:

® to retain the same Independent Living Apartment or Cottage and to
pay the then current single resident Monthly Fee applicable to that
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage; or

® to move to a different type of Independent Living Apartment or
Cottage, if and when available, in accordance with the terms set forth
in Section VL

4. Transfer of One Co-resident to the Davis Center, the Brewer Center, the
Larus Center, the Views, or Seabury Meadows - When one Co-resident
transfers permanently from the Independent Living Apartment or Cotlage to
the Health Services area or to another facility, the Co-residents will continue
to pay the Co-resident Monthly Fee set forth in Exhibit A applicable to the
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage which they occupied at the time
of transfer, subject to adjustment by Seabury in accordance with Section IV
of this Agreement.

For a period of thirty (30) days from the date of transfer, the resident
remaining in the Independent Living Apartment or Cottage shall have the
option to move to a different type of Independent Living Apartment or
Cottage, if and when available, in accordance with the terms set forth in
Section VI,

SEABURY 1-19 26 of 30



Addition of a Co-resident or Marriage - When a single resident occupies an
Independent Living Apartment or Cottage in which Seabury policy permits
double occupancy, the resident can allow another person to join him/her in
occupancy of the Independent Living Apartment or Cottage, if in the sole
judgment of Seabury the new resident qualifies for acceptance. Before
commencing occupancy, the new Co-resident shall be required to sign a
separate Residence and Care Agreement, which will call for payment of the
difference between the then current single resident entrance fee and the
present double occupancy entrance fee, and the applicable monthly fee for
apartment or cottage.

X, MISCELLANEOUS

Confidentiality - Seabury has the responsibility to keep all of the personal,
medical, and financial information you have supplied to Seabury in
confidence. You agree that, as permitted by federal and state law, Seabury
can provide such information to health care professionals, third-party payors,
and others who have a need, in our judgment, or a right to know such
information under federal or state law.

Management Authority - Seabury retains all authority regarding admission,
adjustment of fees, and all aspects of the management of Seabury. You do
not have the right to prevent the admission of a new resident or the
termination of another resident's Residence and Care Agreement, nor do you
have the right to protest the fees charged to or financial assistance rendered
to any other resident.

Waiver - In the event that Seabury does not, in any one or more instances,
insist upon your strict performance, observance, or compliance with any of
the terms or provisions of this Agreement, or if we waive a breach by you of
this Agreement, it shall not be construed to be a waiver of our right to insist
upon your strict compliance with all other terms and provisions of this
Agreement.

Governing Laws - This Agreement, including its validity and the capacity of
the parties to this Agreement, its form, interpretation of its language, and any
questions concerning its performance and discharge, shall be governed by
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and construed in accordance with the laws and judicial decisions of the State
of Connecticut.

5. Attorneys' Fees and Costs - If Seabury is obliged to take legal action to
enforce this Agreement, to collect sums due to Seabury pursuant to this
Agreement, or to recover damages of any kind, you are liable for the costs of
such action, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees.

6. Full and Complete Agreement - This Agreement has precedence over any
representations previously made by Seabury representatives and over any
descriptions of services in promotional materials or presentations. This
Agreement constitutes the entire contract between you and Seabury and
supersedes all previous understandings and agreements between you and
Seabury. No waiver or modification shall be valid unless made in writing,
signed by you and by Seabury and attached to this Agreement.

7. Interpretation - Headings are for convenience and reference purposes only
and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.
Should any provision herein, for any reason, be held invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction in which it is sought to be enforced, such
invalidity and unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this
Agreement, and such invalid and unenforceable provision shall be construed
as if it were omitted. The remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

8. Right of Subrogation - Should you be injured by a third party and such
injury requires us to provide health care services under this Agreement, we
shall be subrogated, to the extent allowed by Connecticut law, to your rights
against such other third party to the extent necessary to reimburse us for the
costs incurred in providing health care services under this Agreement.

9. Gender of Pronouns - All references in this Agreement by masculine
pronouns and adjectives also include the feminine and vice versa.

10.  Successors and Assigns - The duties owed Seabury under this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of its successors and assigns.

11.  Statement of Non-Discrimination - Seabury complies with applicable federal
and state laws that prohibit discrimination based on race, color, sex,
religious beliefs, national origin and other protected classes of persons.
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12.  Notices - Until you reside at Seabury and when required by the terms of this
Agreement, notices shall be given in writing and shall be given to Seabury
or to you at the addresses set forth in Exhibit A, or at such address as we or
you shall specify in writing to each other.

Your signature below certifies that you have read, understand and accept this
Agreement and that you or your financial advisor have received the most current
Disclosure Statement containing the current audited {inancial statements.

Signature - Resident

Date
CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD, INCORPORATED

By:

Authorized Representative

Date
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Last Name:

EXHIBIT A

OCCUPANCY - The scheduled date agreed upon is

FEF, SCHEDULE — Entry and monthly fees are based on the type of Independent
Living Apartment or Cottage you occupy and the number of persons residing in the
Apartment or Cottage. The Independent Living Apartment or Cottage you have
selected and the applicable fees are stated below:

Reserved Apartment or Cottage Number

Apartment or Cottage Type

Total Entrance Fee for _ Single Resident $
____Co-Residents $

Credit for Payment of Reservation Fee $

Seabury At Home Applied Membership Fee $

Parking Garage Fee (Buy-in):

Space Number # $

ENTRANCE FEE BALANCE DUE AT

COMPLETION OF AGREEMENT $

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE AT COMPLETION

OF AGREEMENT $

Monthly Fee: _Single Resident $
___Two Residents $

Weekly Housekeeping: $

Parking Fee (Rental Option)  Garage Carport
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Space Number # # $
Meal Plan:

Reduced-Meal Plan Credit $
No-Meal Plan Credit $
ESCQO: Phone $
Internet $
Premium Cable $
Other Charges: $
TOTAL MONTHLY FEE $

Refund Option Selected

(_)Plan 0%

(_) Plan 67%

() Plan 80%

Addresses for Required Notice

to Seabury: President and CEO

Seabury
200 Seabury Drive

Bloomfield, Connecticut 06002

to You:

Your signature below certifies that you have read, understand and accept this
Exhibit A.

Signature - Resident

Date
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
Seabury, inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Seabury, Inc. and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consclidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

-1~ An independent mearibar of Baker Tilly International



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Seabury, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2018 and 2017,
and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The consclidating schedules of financial position, activities and changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the years ended Sepiember 30, 2018 and 2017 are presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consoclidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and recongiling such
information directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted ih the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole,

West Hartford, Connecticut
January 4, 2019



SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

ASSBETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis held by trusiee

Entrance fee deposits
Accounts receivable, net
Entrance fees receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Investments
invesiments
Investments held by trustee

Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Vehicles
Constfruction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment

Other Assets
Deferred marketing costs, net
Deferred compensation investments
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Investment in Limited Partnerships
Pledges receivable
Total other assets

Total Assets

2018 2017
9,560,303 10,293,440
4,554,079 2,655,181

203,562 2,757,215
2,062,094 1,365,135
2,585,917 1,507,198
1,021,608 632,659

19,987,560 19,210,828
17,733,496 19,935,437
7,173,564 20,756,533
24,907,060 49,691,970
9,636,307 9,636,307
154,585,230 82,565,387
11,736,236 10,011,534
208,243 206,243
583,804 56,706,878
176,747,910 156,126,349
55,552,696 49,153,034
121,195,214 109,973,315
1,052,941 1,219,712

174,955 126,341
5,279,476 3,593,092

270,123 180,399

85,448 85,448
6,862,943 5,204,992

$ 172,952,777

$ 184,081,105

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the consolidated financial statements
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED}

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabiiities
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of loans payable
Current portion of capital leases
Accounis payable and accrued expenses
Entrance fee deposits
Total current liabilites

Annuities Payable

Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion
and Bond Financing Costs

Capital Leases, Net of Current Portion

Deferred Compensation

Refundable and Nonrefundable Entrance Fees

Entrance fees refunds payable
Nonrefundable deferred fees, net

Total refundable and nonrefundable deferred entrance fees

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assels

2018 2017
$ 970,000 § 835,060
- 27,081
92,735 87,300
3,353,628 10,599,192
203,562 2,757,215
4,619,925 14,405,797
194,450 219,711
86,350,722 106,315,341
392,505 483,418
174,955 126,341
36,496,025 27,508,055
38,258,470 24,825,598
74,754,485 52,333,653
166,487,052 173,884,261
400 4,826,312
815,848 1,397,440
5,649,476 3,963,082
6,465,725 16,186,844
$ 172,962,777 § 184,081,105

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
Unrestricted Net Assets
Revenues, gains and other support:
Health center patients, net of contractuals $ 7,883,643 § 7,372,800
Assisted living services 3,567,638 3,351,244
Resident services 13,312,961 10,828,855
Home health revenue 1,631,245 1,192,281
Seabury At Home revenue 779,000 626,920
Amortization of nonrefundable deferred fees 2,938,364 2,859,746
Investment income 1,624,874 1,636,088
Other income 1,309,527 821,025
Contributions and gifts 291,572 1,126,003
Total revenues, galns and other suppori 33,338,824 29,915,062
Expenses:
Medical and other resident care 9,085,631 8,317,450
General and administrative 11,623,662 11,519,675
Dietary 3,680,063 3,351,004
Repairs and maintenance 2,420,194 2,434,158
Housekeeping and laundry 1,001,088 853,562
Interest expense, net 4,020,950 1,741,274
Depreciation 6,771,137 4,312,813
Total expenses 38,602,735 32,530,026
Loss from operations (5,263,811) (2,614,964)
Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Change in net unrealized gain {(loss) on investments (66,098) 480,492
Net assets released from restrictions 504,097 1,415
Loss on disposal of property - {198,834)
Decrease in unrestricted net assets {4,825,912) {2,331,891)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions, gifts and other income 39,534 532,802
investment galn (loss) (106,159) 76,699
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investments {10,869) 27,613
Net assets released from restrictions (504,097) (1,415)
increase (decrease) In temporarily restricted net assets (581,591) 635,699
Permanently Resiricted Net Assets
Change in interest in perpetual trusts 134,988 237,629
Gift received in interest in perpetual trusts 1,551,396 -
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 1,686,384 237,629
Change in Net Assets (3,721,119) (1,458,563)
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 10,186,844 11,645,407
Met Assets - End of Year $ 6,465725 $ 10,186,844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Proceeds from entrance fees, net of refunds
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Loss on disposal of property
Amortization of bond financing costs
Amortization of bond premium
Amartization of nonrefundable deferred fees
Amortization of deferred marketing costs
Change in net unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Change in interest in perpetuat trusts
Gift received in interest in perpetual trusts
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Entrance fee deposits
Accounts receivable and pledges receivable
Entrance fees receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other receivables
Increase {decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Entrance fee deposits
Annuities payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Purchases from Investing Activities
Sales of investments and cash held by trustee, net
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
related to construction
Purchases of property and sguipment
Payment of deferred marketing costs
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Principal payments on bonds payable
Principal payments on loan payable
Principal payments on capital ieases

Net cash used in financing activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

$

2018 2017
(3,721,119) (1,458,563)
25,359,206 4,120,623

6,771,137 4,312,813

157,263 306,731

- 198,834

91,665 91,665
(76,284) (76,284)
(2,938,364) (2,959,746)
83,039 -
76,967 (508,105)
(134,088) (237,629)
(1,551,396) .
2,553,653 (397,586)
(854,222) (220,231)
(1,678,719) 1,098,178
(388,946) (77,509)

- 5,567

(516,675) 486,053
(2,553,653) 397,586
(25,261) (86,300)
21,253,303 4,996,097
22,719,321 34,684,151
(6,728,889) 3,085,590
(17,887,125) (43,312,686)
(22,179) (568,792)
(1,918,872) (6,111,737)
(19,945,000) (895,000)
(27,081) (88,571)
(95,487) (85,965)
(20,067,568) (1,069,536)
(733,137) (2,185,176)
10,293,440 12,478,616
9,560,303 $ 10,293,440

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consalidated financial statements

8-



SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NQTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Seabury, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) is a Connecticut nonstock, tax-exempt organization
operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary or educational purposes by operating for
the benefit of performing the functions of and carrying out the purposes of Church Home of Hartford,
Inc. dibfa Seabury (Seabury), Seabury At Home and Seabury Charitable Foundation, Inc. {the
Foundation).

Seabury is a Connecticut nonstock, tax-exempt organization that has provided housing with support
services for the elderly in the Hartford area since 1876. Seabury, which is affiliated with the Episcopal
Diocese of Connecticut, currently operates a health center and independent living community. As of
September 30, 2018, Seabury consists of 257 independent living units, 29 congregate living units,
22 residential care home beds, 72 skilled nursing beds, 44 assisted living dementia beds and 14
dementia residential care home beds. As of September 30, 2017, Seabury consists of 192
independent living units, 27 congregate living units, 22 residential care home beds, 60 skilied nursing
beds, 44 assisted living dementia beds and 14 residential care home beds. As the Company is the
sole member and beneficiary of Seabury, the activities of Seabury have been consolidated with those
of the Company in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. All significant transactions
between the Company and Seabury have been eliminated.

Overall occupancy levels at Seabury for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Seabury
Independent living 88% 93%
Congregate living 94% 93%
Residential care home 64% 88%
Skilled nursing care 88% 95%
Assisted living - dementia 0% 83%
Residential care home - dementia 89% 97%

In May 1996, the Company formed the Foundation. The Foundation is incorporated under the
Nonstock Corporation Act of the State of Connecticut and is a separate legal entity from the Company.
The purpose of the Foundation is to operate exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of
and to further the charitable purposes and mission of Seabury and Seabury At Home. As the Company
is the sole member and beneficiary of the Foundation, the activities of the Foundation have been
consolidated with those of the Company in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. All
significant transactions between the Company and the Foundation have been eliminated.

In March 2006, the Company formed Seabury At Home, which began operations in 2008. Seabury At
Home is incorporated under the Nonstack Corporation Act of the State of Connecticut and is a separate
legal entity from the Company. The purpose of Seabury At Home is to sponsor, initiate, develop,
operate and maintain facilities and programs for the delivery of health care, personal care and support
services to the elderly designed to promote and extend opportunities for independent living and
personal health. As the Company is the sole member and beneficiary of Seabury At Home, the
activities of Seabury At Home have been consolidated with those of the Company in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. All significant transactions between the Company and Seabury At

Home have been eliminated.




SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In June 2015, the Company formed Seabury Powder Forest, LLC (Powder Forest). Powder Forest was
formed as an LLC pursuant to laws of the State of Conneclicut. The purpose of Powder Forest is to
acquire and hold land for possible future development. Seabury At Home and the Foundation are
equal members of Powder Forest. All transactions between the Foundation, Seabury At Home and
Powder Forest have been eliminated.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

In order fo ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of the resources
available to the Company, the accounts are mainiained on the accrual basis of accounting, and,
accordingly, the accounts are recorded in the following net asset categories:

Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted net assets represent resources that may be expended at the direction of the Board of
Birectors.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions that are restricted by the donor either as to
purpose or as to time of expenditure and are o be used to support various operating activities. They
also inciude accumulated investment earnings cn permanently restricted investments that have not
been appropriated for expenditure.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets represent resources that have donor-impesed restrictions that
require that the principal be maintained in perpetuity but permit the Company to expend the income
earned thereon to support operational activities. These permanently restricted net assets include the
Company’s beneficial interest in perpetual trusts of $5,279,476 and $3,593,092 at September 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively, and an endowment of $370,000 for each of the years ended
Sepiember 30, 2018 and 2017. During 2018, a gift was received through an existing perpetual trust
of $1,551,396, as reflected on the consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets for
the year ended September 30, 2018 within permanently restricted net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiiities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as
of the date of the financial statemenis and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Financial statement areas where
management applies the use of estimates consist primarily of allowance for doubiful accounts
receivable, useful lives of property and equipment, amortization of deferred marketing costs,
amortization of nonrefundable deferred fees, actuarial calculation of future service obligations for
Seabury and Seabury At Home, accrued expenses and annuities payable. It is management's opinion
that the estimates applied in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are reasenable.



SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less. The Company maintains deposits in financial institutions that may, at times,
exceed federal depository insurance limits. Management believes that the Company’s deposits are not
subject to significant credit risk.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are considered delinguent and written off when all attempts to collect from
individuals or other payor sources have heen exhausted. Management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $192,000 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, which is based on a review of
significant balances and past experience.

Investment Valuation and income Recognition

Investments are reported at fair value, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. See Note 3 for a discussion of fair value measurements. Purchases and sales of securities are
recorded on the trade date basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend date. Unrealized gain (loss) on investments includes the Company's gains
and losses on investments bought and sold as well as held during the year.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses and investment income on donor-restricted endowment
assets are classified as increases or decreases in temporarily restricted net assets until appropriated
for expenditure. The Company adopted a policy to review, for potential adjustment to cost, any
investment where market value has decreased below cost by greater than 25% for a petiod of nine
months or fonger. No adjustments were necessary for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and
2017. Refer to Note 5 for further detail on investment income for the years ended September 30, 2018
and 2017.

Property and Equipment

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-30 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-20 years
Vehicles 4 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred, Expenditures in
excess of $2,500 for renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Deferred Marketing Costs

Marketing costs associated with the initial fill-up of newly constructed residential units have been
deferred and will be amortized over the actuarially estimated remaining lives of the residents who
ocoupy the units. Amortization expense of $83,039 was incurred for the year ended September 30, 2018.




SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributions

Contributions are defined as voluntary, nonreciprocal transfers. Unrestricted and unconditional
contributions are recognized as support when received or pledged, if applicable. Contributions are
reported as temporarily restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use
of such assets. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends, or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net asseis as net assets
released from restrictions due to satisfaction of restrictions.

Health Center Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party
payors and others for services rendered. Rates charged for services rendered, other than private pay
patients, are regulated by Medicaid, Medicare and other government programs.

Revenue under third-party payor agreements is subject to audit and retroactive adjustment. Provisions
for estimated third-party payor settlements are provided for in the period the related services are
rendered. Differences between the estimated amounts accrued and interim and final settlements are
reported in operations in the year of settlement. Management believes that all applicable government
reimbursement principles have been properly applied and that no material adjustments will occur as a
result of an audit.

Services to Seabury Af Home, Inc.

This revenue represents revenue from services provided to Seabury At Home by Seabury employees.
This amount is eliminated in the consolidated totals.

Operating Reserve

The State of Connecticut Department of Social Services (DSS3) monitors Connecticut retirement
communities and their compiiance with existing state regulations. Among other things, DSS requires
that retirement communities maintain an operating reserve equal to approximately one month’s cash
operating costs. The Company maintained an adequate operating reserve as of September 30, 2018
and 2017.

Charitable Reserve

Pursuant to the agreed settlement with the State of Connecticut for the addition of 30 skilled nursing
beds during fiscal 1996, the Company was required to segregate $500,000 of its investments in a
contingency fund account restricted to provide for the expenses of the continuum of care to be made
available to private payor health center residents of Seabury that may not be covered by the residents’
assets. This amount was increased by $100,000 in each fiscal year through the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2001 so that the reserve at September 30, 2018 and 2017 is in excess of the reguired
$1,000,000. This amount is included n unrestricted net assets in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The Company is the beneficiary of several trust funds. Although the principal balances in the trust
funds are permanently restricted, the income earned on the trust funds is unrestricted. The income is
used for general expenses to maintain and operate the facilities. For the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, $200,779 and $155,142, respectively, is included in unrestricted
investment income. Changes in market value for the Company’s portion of the trusts were $134,988
and $237,629 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Charitable Gift Annuity

The Foundation is the recipient of charitable gift annuities. Under the terms of the charitable gift
annuity agreement with the individual donors, the Foundation is required to make monthly or quarterly
payments to the donors over their remaining life, The proceeds from the gifts are unrestricted and are
recognized as revenue to the extent that the fair market value of a gift on the date of receipt exceeds
the present value of the estimated future annuity payments. The present value of the estimated future
annuity payments is reflected as an annuity payable in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position.

Income Taxes

Seabury, the Foundation and Seabury At Home are tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3} of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not subject to federal or state income taxes. Powder Forest is a limited liability
company treated as a partnership for income tax purposes with the net activity of Powder Forest being
passed through to the Foundation and Seabury At Home, and reported on their respective Form 990s.
As such, no recognition of income taxes for the Company In has been provided for in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluated subsequent events
through January 4, 2019, which represents the date the consolidated financial statements were

available to be issued.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1

inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that the Company has the ability to access.
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 2
Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observabie for the asset or liability;

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation
or other means.

e & & O

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3
Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of cbservable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The foliowing is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets {liabilities) measured at
fair value:

Fixed Income and Equity Mutual Funds
Fixed income and equity mutual funds are valued at the quoted net asset value of shares held by the
Company at year end.

Common Stocks, Foreign Stocks and U.S. Government Securities
These ttems are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual
securities are traded.

Corporate Bonds

Certain corporate bonds are valued at the closing price reporied in the active market in which the
individual securities are traded. Other corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently avaitable
on comparable securities of issuers with similar durations and credit ratings.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

Beneficial interest in perpetual frusts held by third parties are vailued at the present value of the future
disfributions expected fc be received over the term of the agreement, which is measured by the fair
values of the underlying assets. The Company cannot access assets in the trust.

Investment in Limited Partnerships

Investment in limited partnerships (LPs) is valued at cost of capital contributions to the LPs, pius or
minus the proportionate share of net income or [oss in the LPs. Based on the current status of the
L Ps, management believes this approximates fair value.

There have been no changes in the methodclogies used at September 30, 2018 and 2017.
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The methods described abave may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in
a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s assets (liabilities)
at fair value as of September 30, 2018 and 2017:

September 30, Fair Value Measurements Using
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash equivalents $ 1,205,526 $ 1,205525 § - % -
Fixed income mutual funds 10,345,580 10,345,590 - -
U.8. Govermnment securities 7,175,735 7,175,735 - -
Equity mutual funds 1,055,610 1,055,610 - -
Common and foreign stocks 5,124,600 5,124,600 - -

Total investments 24,907,060 24,907,060 - -
Investment in limited partnerships 270,123 - - 270,123
Beneficial interest in perpetual

trusts 5279476 - - 5,279,476
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 30,456,659 $ 24,907,060 $ - § 5,549,509

September 30, Fair Value Measurements Using
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash equivalenis $ 6,198,061 $ 6,198,061 $ - $ “
Fixed income mutual funds 1,379,190 1,379,190 - -
U.S. Government securities 31,176,078 31,176,078 - -
Corporate bonds 4,188,940 - 4,188,940 -
Equity mutual funds 742 660 742,660 - -
Common stocks 6,007,041 6,007,041 - -
Total investments 49,691,970 45,503,030 4,188,940 -
investment in limited partnership 180,399 - - 180,389
Beneficial interest in perpetual

trusts 3,593,092 - - 3,593,082
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 53,465,461 $ 45503,030 $ 4,188,940 $ 3,773,491

There were no transfers between levels of investments during the years ended September 30, 2018

and 2017,
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Assets Measured at Fair Value Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3}

The following is a summary of the changes in the balances of assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unchservable inputs;

Beneficial
interest In Investment
Perpetual in Limited
Trusts Partnerships
Balange - Septamber 30, 2016 $ 3,355,463 % 171,143
Return of capital, net - {5,952}
Total realized and unrealized gains included in the change in
net assets - 2017 237,628 15,208
Balance - September 30, 2017 3,583,092 180,399
Gifts received 1,551,396 -
Purchases, net - 100,000
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses) included in the
change in net assets - 2018 134,888 {10,276)
Balance - September 30, 2018 $ 5,279,476 3 270,123

The underlying subscription agreement for the Company's Investment in Limited Partnerships allows for
a maximum commitment of $500,000. Unfunded capital commitments totaled $168,750 as of
September 30, 2018. The Company does not hold any redemption rights on the Investment in Limited
Partnerships. The Limited Partnerships have a life of 10 years commenced on the date of filing of the
Certificate of Limited Partnership through the termination date, June 30, 2024.

NOTE 4 - LIFE CARE AGREEMENT

A life care agreement is sighed by all residents of Seabury and all enrollees of Seabury At Home.
Some of the principal terms and conditions of the Seabury agreement are as follows;

in consideration for the resident's payment of a life care entrance fee, the Company agrees to furnish
to the resident a living unit in the residence complex for his or her parsonal use and occupancy for
the balance of the resident’s lifetime unless sooner terminated under the provisions of the agreement.
If the agreement includes two persons, the term “resident’ shall include both persons, and on the
death of one all rights pass to, and are retained by, the survivor for the survivor's lifetime. The life
care agreements vary in terms of refund policy and monthly service fees.

An agreed-upon payment schedule for full payment of the life care entrance fee is obtained from the
resident prior fo occupancy. The fee consists of a refundable and nonrefundable portion. The
refundable porticn varies depending upon which of the five contract plans is selected. Three of these
plans are full life care and two plans are non-life care. Of the three life care plans, two offer a
declining refund at 2% per month and another plan offers a fixed 67% refund of the original life care
entrance fee. The non-life care plans offer an 85% or 95% refund, respectively, of the original life
care entrance fees if the occupant never resides in the nursing home facility. If the resident enters
the nursing facility, the refundable amount is reduced by the nursing facility’s standard daily private
pay rate. Under the resident agresments of these five plans, amounis are refundable after the living
unit is reaccupied and the new life care entrance fee is paid in full.
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The 67%, 85% and 95% refundable portions of the life care entrance fee are deferred. All currently held
refundable amounts are shown as a liability in the consolidated statements of financial position. The
33%, 15% and 5% nonrefundable portions of the life care entrance fee and the entire entrance fee for
those who select a plan that offers the declining refund at 2% per month are amortized into income over
the residents’ actuarially determined remaining fives as calculated by the Company's actuaries.

For the duration of the resident’s lifetime or until termination of the agreement, the Company agrees
to furnish to the resident ample and healthful food, medical facilities, utility services, use of the
community facilities and other personal services according to the terms and conditions specified in
the residence agreement. In return, the resident agrees to pay the Company a monthly residence
fee. The monthly residence fee may be increased or decreased at the sole discretion of the Board of
Directors on 60 days written notice.

The Company also provides medical facilittes and nursing care in the health center. Costs incurred in
providing this care are paid for by residents through the continuing payment of manthly service fees per
the residence agreement. Residents without a life care agreement pay for nursing services based
upon established per diem rates.

Some of the principal terms and conditions of the Seabury At Home agreement are as follows:

An agreed-upon payment schedule for full payment of the life care entrance fee is obtained from the
resident prior to enroliment. The fee consists of a refundable and nonrefundable portion. The
refundable partion varies depending upon which of the seven contract plans is selected. Six plans
offer a declining refund at 2% per month and the seventh plan offers a fixed 90% refund of the
original life care entrance fee. Within the six declining refund contracts, two offer 100% coverage of
home and faallity based care, including assisted living and skilled nursing services, one offers a 30%
co-pay option for these services, one offers 100% coverage of home-based care, one offers a 50%
co-pay option for home-based care, and the final contract provides caps on assisted living and skilled
nursing services. The 90% refund of original [ife care entrance fee contract offers 100% coverage of
home and facility-based care, including assisted living and skilled nursing services. Under the
resident agreements of these five plans, amounts are refundable after the individual has terminated
their agreement. The 90% refundable portion of the life care entrance fee is shown as a liability in the
consolidated statements of financial position. The 10% nonrefundable portion of the life care
entrance fee and the entire entrance fee for those who select the plans that offer the declining refund
at 2% per month are amortized into income over the residents’ actuarially determined remaining life
as calculated by the Company’s actuaries.

If a resident with a declining refund of 2% per month transfers from Seabury At Home to Seabury,
100% of their original Seabury At Home entrance fee is transferred to Seabury and credited as a
reduction to their Seabury entrance fee. Any historic amortization taken on this previously
nonrefundable entrance fee is reversed in the year the transfer occurs.

For the duration of the resident's lifetime, or until termination of the agreement, the Company agrees
to furnish to the resident use of the community facilities and other personal services according to the
terms and conditions specified in the residence agreement. In return, the resident agrees to pay the
Company a monthly fee. The monthly fee may be increased or decreased at the sole discration of
the Board of Directors on 60 days written notice.

As noted above, the Company also pravides medical faciliies and nursing care in the health center.
Costs incurred in providing this care are paid for by enrollees through the continuing payment of
monthly service fees per the agreement as well as a deductible as noted in the agreement, if

applicable,
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The Company’s actuaries annuyally calculate the present value of the net cost or benefit of future
services and use of facilities 1o be provided to current residents of Seabury and enroliees of Seabury At
Home and compare that amount to the balance of refundable and nonrefundable deferred entrance
feas. If the present value of the net cost or benefit of future services and use of facilities exceeds the
refundable and nonrefundable deferred entrance fees, a liability is recorded with a corresponding
charge 1o income. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, nc such obligation existed for Seabury and
Seabury At Home. Any significant changes to the actuarial assumptions used in the calculation could
significantly change the results of the caiculation. lf is management’s opinion that the assumptions
applied in the calculation are reasonable.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income on cash and cash equivalents, perpetual trusts and investments is comprised of the
foltowing for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Interest and dividend income from investments $ 623,141 § 318,640
Net realized gain on sales of investments 800,954 1,162,306
Income from investments 1,424,085 1,480,946
interest and dividend income from perpetual trusts 200,779 155,142
Total investment Income $ 1,624,874 $ 1,638,088

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of long-ierm debt at September 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Public Finance Authority Healthcare Facility Expansion/Refunding

Bonds (Seabury Incorporated Project) Series 2015A (PFA Bonds)

dated April 1, 2015, $34,510,000 original principal amount, pius

original issue premium of $760,619, maturing at various times

through September 2038, with interest payable semi-annually on

March 1 and September 1 at various interest rates from 4% to 5%

and principal payable annually on September 1. $ 31,475,000 $ 32,410,000

State of Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority

Revenue Bonds, Healtheare Facility Expansion issue (Seabury

Incorporated Project) Series 2016A (CHEFA 2016A Bonds) dated

April 1, 2016, $52,515,000 original principal amount, plus original

fssue premium of $1,639,570, maturing in September 2046

($23,240,000) and September 2053 ($29,275,000), with interest

payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 at an interest

rate of 5%. Sinking fund installments of principal begin in

September 2038, 52,515,000 52,515,000
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

State of Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority

Revenue Bonds, Healthcare Facility Expansion Issue (Seabury

Incorporated Project) Series 2016B-1 (CHEFA 2016B-1 Bond)

dated April 1, 2016, $9,250,000 original principal amount, maturing

in April 2021, with interest payable semi-annually on March 1 and

September 1 at an interest rate of 3.26%. 3,740,000 9,250,000

State of Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority

Revenue Bonds, Healthcare Facility Expansion Issue (Seabury

Incorporated Project) Series 2016B-2 (CHEFA 2016B-2 Bond)

dated April 1, 2016, $13,500,000 original principal amount,

maturing in April 2020, with interest payable semi~annually on

March 1 and September 1 at an interest rate of 2.875%. - 13,500,000

Eversource interaest free loans with total original principal amounts
totaling $348,032. Monthly principal payments are $7,381 through

July 2018. - 27,081
87,730,000 107,702,081
less current portion (970,000) {962,081)
Less unamortized bhond financing costs (2,590,049) (2,681,714)
Plus unamortized bond premium 2,180,771 2,257,055
Net Long-Term Debt $ 88,350,722 $ 106,315,341

The following is a schedule of fong-term debt principal payments over the next five fiscal years and
thereafter:

CHEFA CHEFA

2016A 2016B-1
Fiscal Year PFA Bonds Bonds Bond Total
2019 $ 870,000 $ - % - % 870,000
2020 1,010,000 - - 1,610,000
2021 1,050,000 - 3,740,000 4,790,000
2022 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
2023 1,155,000 - - 1,155,000
Thereafter 26,180,000 52,515,000 - 78,705,000

$ 31475000 §$ 52515000 $ 3,740,000 $ 87,730,000

Covenants

The Company, under provisions of the bond agreements, is required to maintain a debt setvice
coverage ratio and meet a day’s cash on hand liquidity requirement. In the opinion of management, the
Company is in compliance with these covenants at September 30, 2018.
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

The Company entered into three capital lease agreements for phone, television and internet equipment
during the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016. The first capital lease began monthly payments
of principal and interest of $4,886 with an interest rate of approximately 6.1% in January 2016. The
second capital lease began monthly payments of principai and interest of $3,411 with an interest rate of
approximately 5.97% in March 2016. The third capital lease began monthly payments of principal and
interest of $2,366 with an interest rate of approximately 5.97% in October 2016. The Company's
cumulative property and obligation under capital lease arrangement at the start of the lease
agreements was $703,215 based on the fair value of the furniture, fixtures and equipment acquired.
The net book value of the related property as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 was $527,411 and
$597,732, respectively.

Amortization totaling $70,321 was incurred for the vears ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 relative
to the furniture, fixtures and equipment under capital lease as inciuded in depreciation on the
consolidated statements of activities and change in net assets.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum payments under capital leases, together with
the present value of minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2018:

Year Ending September 30

2019 $ 117,298
2020 127,962
2021 127,962
2022 127,962
2023 51,411

Total minimum lease payments 552,695
Less amount representing interest 67,3565
Capital Lease Obligations $ 485,240

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company maintains a 403(b) defined centribution plan (the Plan). Employees are eligible to
participate in the Plan upon employment, and are eligible for employer matching contributions after
12 months of service. The Company matches employee contributions up to 5.0% of eligible
employees’ payroll for 2018 and 2017. Employees are fully vested in the Plan after three years of
employment. Expenses for employer coniributions recognized in fiscal 2018 and 2017 were
approximately $476,000 and $477,000, respectively. The Company also maintains a nonqualified
deferred compensation plan for key employees that is included as an asset and as a corresponding
liability in the consoiidated statements of financial position, which totaled $174,955 and $126,341 at
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - ENDOWMENT

The Company’s endowment consists of various individual funds established for a variety of purposes.
The endowment inciudes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments. The income earned on investments comprising the Company's
donor-restricted endowment funds is designated by the donors to fund operations. As required by
GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Board of Directors of the Company has interpreted Connecticut Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act {CTPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of
the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations fo the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Company classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the
otiginal value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to
the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts
are appropriated for expenditure by the Company in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by GTPMIFA. In accordance with CTPMIFA, the Company considers the following factors in
making a determination fo appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

The duration and preservation of the fund

The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
General economic conditions

The possible effect of inflation and deflation

The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
Other resources of the organization

The investment policies of the organization

& © & ® © B @
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The total endowment funds of the Company at September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Seabury, Inc.
Permanently

Seabury, Inc.

Temporarily

Restricted Restricted
Endowment Endowment
Funds Funds Total

Endowment assets - September 30, 2016 § 376,000 $ 636,266 $ 1,006,266
Investment gain:
Realized gains - 76,699 76,699
Unrealized gains - 27,613 27,613

Total investment gain - 104,312 104,312
Endowment assets - September 30, 2017 370,000 740,578 1,110,578
Investment loss:
Realized losses - {106,159} (166,159)
Unrealized losses - {10,869) (10,869)

Total investment loss - {117,028) (117,028)
Endowment Assets - September 30, 2018 § 370,000 $ 623,550 8 993,550

Funds with Deficiencies

From time fo time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the amount required to be maintained by donors or by the law (underwater
endowments). The Company has interpreted CTPMIFA {o permit spending from underwater
endowments in accordance with prudent measures reguired under law,

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Company has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of
donhor-restricted funds that the organization must hold In perpetuity or Tfor a donor-specified period(s) as
well as board-designated funds. Under this policy, the Company expects its endowment funds, over
time, to provide a total net return of approximately 4% over the average inflation rate of the preceding
three years. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Company relies on a iotal raturn strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). The Company targets a diversified asset aliocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-hased investimenis to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Company maintains a spending policy on board-restricted endowment funds, which limits the
appropriation to up to 5% of the market value of endowment investment assets unless specifically
approved by the Board, The Company maintains a spending policy on the earnings of donor-restricted
funds in which the amount of funds to be appropriated will be determined annually as part of the
budgeting process. In establishing these policies, the Company considered the long-term expected
return on its endowment. This is consistent with the Company’s objective to maintain the purchasing
power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide
additionaf real growth through new gifts and investment return.

NOTE 10 - CASH FLOWS
Additional Cash Flow Information

The Company paid cash for interest of $4,766,139 and $4,981,160 during the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Of the total cash paid for interest during the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, $716,328 and $3,312,485, respectively, related to financing of a
construction project was capitalized. These amounts were reduced by $21,981 and $23,614 of
invesiment income earned on cash and investments held by trustee during the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and the net amount of $694,347 and $3,288,881 was
included in property and equipment on the consolidated statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 11 - LEASE AGREEMENTS
The Company leases various types of office equipment and services. Lease expense was
approximately $93,000 and $72,000 for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The approximate minimum future

lease payments under noncancelable operating leases with a remaining term in excess of one year as
of September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Year Ending September 30

2019 $ 118,000
2020 39,000
2021 4,000

NOTE 12 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Company provides healthcare and other services to its residents and patients. Expenses related
to providing these services for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Healthcare and resident services $ 29,417,145 $ 24,769,758
General and administrative 8,185,580 7,780,268

$ 38,602,735 $ 32,530,026
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SEABURY, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During 2016, the Company had entered into a contract with the general contractor for a construction
project to expand and renovate the community through construction of 68 new independent living units
and 12 new skilled nursing beds, in addition fo cther improvements (the Expansion Project). The
contract calls for costs totaling approximately $56,384,000, of which approximately $55,726,000 has
been completed through September 30, 2018.

During 2017, the Company has also entered into 25-year Solar Photovoltaic Power Purchase
Agreement with General Electric International, Inc. (Seller). The Company will provide the Seller with
access to, and the right to occupy a portion of their properties for the purpose of having the Seller
design, install, own, operate and maintain a solar photovoltaic electtic generating system. The
Company will purchase all of the electricity generated by the system at a certain rate.

The Company is occasionally party to asserted and unasserted claims arising from the course of

operations. Management is of the opinion that the outcome of any such claims will not have a material
impact on the Company's financial position or resuits of operations or cash flows.
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents
held by trustee
Entrance fee deposits
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, related parly
Entrance fees receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
current asseis
Total current assets

Investmants
Investments
Invesiments held by trustee
Total investments

Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Vehicles
Construction in progress

Less accumuiated depreciation
Net property and equipment

Other Assets
Defarred marketing costs, net
Deferred compensation investmants
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Investment in Limited Partnerships
Investment in Seabury at
Powder Forest LLC
l.oan receivable, related party
Pledges receivable
Total other assets

Total Assets

Church Seabury Seabury at
Home of Charitable Seabury Powder
Hartford Foundation, At Home Forest
Incorporated Inc. Ine. LLC Eliminations Total
3 3,130,835 § 80,785 3 6,346,999 $ 1,584 % -8 8,560,303
4,654,079 - - - - 4,554,679
203,562 - - - - 203,562
2,062,094 - - - - 2,062,694
256,153 - - - (256,153) -
830,354 - 1,755,563 - - 2,585,817
045,259 37,470 7.610 31,266 - 1,021,865
11,882,436 118,255 8,110,172 32,850 (256,153) 19,987,560
13,434,470 4,209,026 - - - 17,733,498
7,173,564 - - - - 7,173,564
20,608,034 4,209,026 - - - 24,907,060
4,429,495 - 315,602 4,891,120 - 9,636,307
154,039,437 - 545,793 - - 154,585,230
11,800,352 36,647 99,237 - - 11,736,236
208,243 - - - - 206,243
583,894 - - - - 583,894
176,859,421 36,647 960,722 4,881,120 - 176,747,91G
58,175,206 4,593 372,897 - - 55 562,608
115,684,215 32,054 587,825 4,881,120 - 121,185,214
1,052,841 - - - - 1,052,841
174,958 - - - - 174,955
5,279,476 - - - - 5,278,476
270,123 - - - - 276,123
- 2,461,985 2,461,985 - (4,923,970) -
- 85,448 - - - 85,448
6,777,495 2,547,433 2,461,085 - (4,823,970} 8,862,943
% 155,052,180 $ 6,996,768 $ 11,159,982 $ 4623970 $  (5,180,123) § 172,952,777
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Church Seabury
Home of Chatltable Seabury Seabury at
Hartford Foundation, AtHome  Powder Forest
Incorporated Ingc. Inc. ) LLC Eliminations Totai
Current Liabilities
Current porfion of bonds payable  $ 870,000 % - & - $ - 3§ - % 970,060
Current portion of capital leases 92,735 - - - - 92,735
-Accounts payahle and
accrued expenses 3,280,949 12,0625 51,654 - - 3,353,628
Accounts payabie, related parly - - 256,153 - (258,153} -
Entrance fee depaosits 203,562 - - - - 203,562
Total current liabilities 4,556,246 12,025 307,807 - (258,153} 4,649,925
Annuities Payable - 164,450 - - - 194,458
Bonds Payable, Net of Current
Partion and Bond Financing
Costs 86,350,722 - - - - 86,350,722
Capital Leases, Net of
Gurrent Portion 392,505 - - - - 392,505
Defarred Compensation 174,955 - - - - 174,955
Refundable and Nonrefundable
Entrance Fees
Entrance feas refunds payahle 33,333,843 - 3,162,182 - - 36,496,025
Nonrefundable deferred fees, net 29,986,081 - 8,262,389 - - 38,268,470
Total refundable and nonrefundable
deferred entrance fees 63,328,924 - 11,424,671 - - 74,754,495
Total liabliifies 154,804,352 206,475 11,732,378 - (258,153} 166,487,052
Net Assets
Unrestricted (6,116,223) 6,689,019 {572,396) 4,923,870 (4,923,870% 460
Temporarily restricted 714,575 101,274 - - - 815,848
Permanenily restricted 5649476 - - - - 5,640,478
Tetal net assets 247,828 6,760,293 {672,396) 4,923,870 (4,923,870} 8,465,725
Total Liabilities and Net Assets.  § 155,052,180 $ 6,996,768 § {1,169,982 $§ 4,923,670 § (5,180,123Y § 172,952,777
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

ASSETS

Seabury Seabury at
Church Home Charltable Seabury Powder
of Hartford Foundation, At Home Forest
Incorporated Inc, Inc. LLC Eliminations Total
Current Assets
Gash and cash equivalents § 3,186,707 350,325 $ 6,754,339 § 2,069 $ - $ 10,203,440
Cash and cash equivalents
held by trustee 2,655,181 - - - - 2,655,181
Entrance fee deposits 2,757,215 " - - - 2,757,215
Accounts receivable, net 1,365,135 - - - - 1,365,135
Accounts receivable, related party 373,763 - - - (373,763) -
Entrance fees recelvable 251,138 - 1,256,060 - - 1,507,188
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 527,491 38,931 33,808 32,428 - 632,659
Totat current assets 11,116,630 389,256 8,044,207 34,498 (373,763) 19,210,828
Investments
Investments 14,986,718 4,948,719 - - - 19,835,437
Investments held by trustee 29,756,533 - - - - 29,756,533
Total investments 44,743,251 4,948,718 - - - 49,681,870
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land and improvements 4,428,495 - 315,682 4,891,120 - 9,636,307
Buildings and improvements §2,019,504 - 545,793 - - 82,565,387
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9,900,527 20,257 80,750 - - 10,011,534
Vehicles 206,243 - - - - 206,243
Construction in progress 56,708,878 - - . - 56,706,878
153,262,737 20,257 452,235 4,881,120 - 159,126,349
Less accumulated depreciation 48,829 567 2,264 321,203 - - 48,153,034
Net property and equipment 104,433,170 17,893 631,032 4,861,120 - 109,973,318
Other Assets
Deferred marketing costs, net 1,219,712 - - - - 1,219,712
Deferred compensation investments 126,341 - - - - 126,341
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 3,593,092 - - - - 3,583,092
Investment in Limited Parinership 180,399 - - - - 186,388
Investment in Seabury at
Powder Forest LLC - 2,462,809 2,462,809 - (4,925,618) -
Loan receivable, related party 317,294 - - - (317.294) -
Pledges recelvable - 85,448 - - - 85,448
Tota! other assels 5,436,838 2,548,257 2,462,808 - (5,242,912 5,204,892
Total Assets 3 465720880 § 7904225 § 11,138048 $ 4,025618 §  (5616,675) & 184,081,105
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of loans payable
Current pottion of capital lease
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Accounts payable, related party
Entrance fee deposits

Total current liabilltias

Anrnuities Payable

Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion

and Bond Financing Costs

Laans Payable, Net of Current Portien

Capital Lease, Net of Current Portion

Deferred Compensation

Refundable and Nonrefundable
Entrance Fees
Entrance fees refunds payable
Nonrefundable deferred fees, net

Total refundable and nonrefundable

deferred entrance fees
Total liabilities

Net Assets
Linrestricted
Tempararily restricted
Permanently rastricted

Total net assets

Total Liabifities and Nel Assets

Seabury Sesbury at
Church Home Charitable Seabury Powder
of Hastford Foundation, At Home Forest
Incorporated Inc. Inc. LLC Eliminations Total

935,000 § -8 - & - -3 835,000
27,081 - - - - 27,081
87,308 - - - - 87,309
10,308,761 231,968 58,463 - - 10,599,192
- - 373,763 - {373,763) -
2,757,215 - - - - 2,757,215
14,115,366 231,868 432,226 - {373,763) 14,405,797
- 218,711 - - - 219,711
106,315,341 - - - - 108,315,341
- - 317,294 - {317,284) -
493,418 - - - - 483,418
128,341 - - - - 126,341
24,326,663 - 3,181,392 - - 27,608,065
17,216,799 - 7,608,799 - - 24,825 598
41,543,462 - 10,790,191 - - 52,333,653
162,593,928 451,679 11,538,711 - (691,057) 173,894,261
(1,658,734) 6,886,709 (401,663) 4,925,618 {4,925,618) 4,826,312
831,603 565,837 - - - 1,397,440
3,863,002 - - - - 3,963,092
3,135,661 7,452 548 (401,683} 4,925,618 (4,925,618) 10,186,844
165720889 § 7,004,225 § 11,138,048 § 4925618 (6,616,675) § 184,081,105
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SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES AND GHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR £NDED SEPTEMBER 35, 2018

Seebury at
Seabury FPowder Forast
Church Home of Hartford Insarporated Seabury Charitabla Foundatlun, ine., At Home, Ing. LG
Temporarily  Psrmanantly Temporarly
Unrestrlcted _ Restricled Restricted Total Unrasiricted Restricted Tatal Unrestrlcled  Unresirdcted  Eliminations Tofal
Revenues, Gains and Gther Support
Heallh conter patients, net of conlractuals & 7818712 § - & - & 7918713 3§ -8 - % -8 - - % {35070} § 7,883,643
Asglsted living services 3,817,404 - - 3,617,404 - ~ - - - {49,766} 3,567,638
Resldent services 13,401,823 - - 18,401,823 - - - - - {88,862} 13,312,96%
Hame heaith revenue 514,844 - - 614,844 - - - 4,018,401 - - 1,631,245
Seabury At Home ravenue - - - - - - - 779,800 - - 779,000
Services to Seabury At Homa, inc. 1,575,197 - - 4,575,197 - - - - - (1,675,197} -
Amortization of nonrefundable deferred lees 2,538,804 - - 2,538,804 - - - 401,580 - - 2,638,364
Invasimant fncome (lass} 1,204,810 (105,169} - 1,098,760 356,131 - 256,131 {63,824} - 127,648 1,518,715
Glhar incoma 1,142,262 - - 1,442,252 121,650 - 121,550 248,108 ~ {202,393) 1,308,527
Caniribyllons and gitts - - - - 291,572 39,534 331,108 - - - 331,108
Contibulions from the Seabury Charitabls
Foundation, Inc. 1,422,975 - - 1,422,875 - - - - - (1,422,975} -
Nat assets released {rom: resfriclians - - - - 504,097 {504,097 - - - - -
Tuta! revenues, galns and other suppoerl 33434941 (106,159} - 33,328,782 1,273,350 1464,563) 808,787 2,381,245 - {3,246,615) 33,272,199
Expenses
Medical and other resident care 9,021,966 - - 9,021,988 - - - 1,586,725 - {1,493,062) 9,085,631
Genaral and adminlstralive 10,809,726 - - 10,888,726 1,543,930 - 1,643,830 943,558 127,648 {1,881 201) 11,623,662
Dielary 3,680,063 - - 3,080,063 - - - - - - 3,680,063
Repairs and malntenance 2,420,194 - - 2,420,194 - - - - - - 2,420,194
Heusekeaping and faundry 1,004,098 - - 1,001,098 - - - - - - 1,001,698
interest expense, net 4,020,950 - - 4,020,950 - - - - - B 4,020,950
Dapreciation 6717114 - - §717,114 2,329 - 2326 51,694 - - 8,771,137
Tolat expenses 37,764,113 - - 37,754,113 1,546,259 - 1,546,268 2,551,878 127,648 (3,374,263) 38,602,735
Inceme (Loss) fram Opetratiors 4,316,472) {108,159} - (4422331 (272,809) (464,563 (737 472} (170,733) (127.648) 127,648 {5,330,536)
Change in Ret Unrealized Gain {L.ass} en
Investments {141,217} {10,869) - (152,188) 75219 75,219 - - - {76,967}
Change in Interest in Perpsiual Trusts - - 134,968 134,068 - - - - - - 134,880
Gifi Raceived in Inlerest in P i Trusts - - 1,551,306 1,851,228 - - - - - . 1,551,398
Ghange in Nel Assots (4,467,489} {£17,028) 1,686,384 {2,868,131) (197,680} {464,563) {662,253) {170,732) (127,648} 127,648 (3,724,119
Met Assels - Haginning of Year (1,656,734} 831,603 3,963,082 3,135,961 8,886,709 568,837 7452546 {401,663} 4826618 {4.625,618) 10,186,844
Contributions fram Members - - - - - - - - 126,000 (426,080) -
Nat Assets - End of Year $ (8116,223) & 714,675 §_ 5849476 3 247828 § 6889019 S 101,274 S 6790,203 S__ (572.396) § 4923870 $ (4923970) §__ G465725
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SEABURY, INC. AND 8UBSIMARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF AGTIVITIES AND GHANGES N NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2047

Ghureh Home of Hartford Incorperated

Seabtiry Gharjtable Foundatlon, inc.

Seabury

Af Home, li3e.

Temporarily  Poermanently
Unrestricted _ Restrictad Restriciod Total Unrastctad Unrestricted Eliminatt Total
Revenues, Galns and Other Support
Haalih conter patienls, nel of contractuals § 7373022 % - - § 7373022 % -8 - {(i22) § 7,372,800
Aasisted fiving services 3,448,101 - - 3448101 - - {96,857 3,351,244
Residenl services 10,960,527 + - 10,960,527 - - {131,672} 10,820,055
Home health revenue 659,144 - - 659,144 - £33,137 - 1,152,281
Seabury Al Home ravenue - - - - - 646,401 {19,481} 626,520
Services ta Seabury At Homa, Ing. 1,378,648 - - 4,378,842 - - {1,378,849) -
Arortizalion of nonrefundable deferred fees 2,635,385 - - 2,635,365 - 324,381 - 2,969,746
Investment income 1,511,638 76,698 - 1,588,338 83,737 (60,717) 121,434 1,712,787
Other Income 744,251 - T44,251 108,688 212,877 (244,892) 821,025
Conldbutlans and gits - - - - 1,126,033 - - 1,558,805
Conldbutlons from the Seabury Charitabile
Foundalion, lac. 121,979 - - 121,979 - - {121,972} -
Net assets released from restriclons - - - - 1,415 - - -
Total revenues, gakss and other support 28,8328677 78,699 - 28,908,378 1,289,839 1,856,178 (1,872,218} 30,524 563
Expenses
Medical and other resident care 8,284.525 - - 8,284,525 - 1,300,249 (1.267.284) 8,317 450
General and administrative 10,940,112 - - 10,940,412 687,018 497,468 (726,358) 11,519,675
Dietary 3,351,004 - - 3,351,004 - - - 3,351,084
Repalrs and maintenance 2434 158 - - 2,434,158 - - - 2,434,158
Heuseleeping and laundry 553,582 - - 853,562 - - - 853,562
Intgrost expanse, net 1741,274 - - 1,741,274 - - - 1,741,274
Depreciation 4,260,228 - - 4,260,328 1.509 80,978 - 4,312,813
Tolal expenses 31,865,051 - - 31.865,951 688,527 1,848,668 {1.993.650) 32,530,026
Income (Loss} fram Qperations (3,032,374) 75,609 - (2,955,675} 811,312 {192,487} 121432 {2,005,462)
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment (21,433) - - {21,433} - {77,401} - {198,834)
Change In Nei Unrealized Gain on
Investments 202,267 7613 - 228,880 274,225 - - 508,105
Ghange in interest in Perpetual Trusts - - 237,620 237,629 - - - 237,829
Change in Net Assets (2,851,640) 104,312 237,629 {2,509,599) 889,537 {369,888) 121,432 (1458,563)
Net Assats - Beginning of Year 1,182,868 727,284 3,725,483 5,645,560 5,897,172 (31,775 (4,922,386) 11,645,447
Conlributions from Membars - - - - ~ - {124,804} -
Not Aseats - End of Your $ [1.658.734) 8 831,603 3,583,082 3,135,961 § BAB6709 $ {401,663) § {4.925.618) 5 10,186,844




SEABURY, ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLDATING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2048

Cash Flows [rom Operating Activitles
Change in not assels
Adjustments to reconcle changa in nef assels
tor nat cash provided by {used Inj oparating activifes:
Praceads from entrance fees, nat of refunds
Depraciation
Bad debt expense
Loss on disposal of propery
Amortizatian of bond finanting costs
Amortizalion of band premium
‘Amontzation of nontefundabie dofemed {ees
Amortization of deferred marketing fees
Changa In net uareatized (gain} ioss on inveatmente
Cliange in Interest in perpatusl tusts
Lasz on invesimant in Seabury &l Pawder Forast LLG
Gifts received I imerestfn porpetua rusts
{inerease] decrzase in operating assels:
Entrance faa daposits
Accounls recelvable and pladges recaivabie
Accounts recofvabls, refated party
Enlance feas racefvabls
Prapald expenzes and ether curtent assels
Lnan recaivable, ralsted perly
Oihor receivables
[ncrense {decrease) in operaling iabihiles:
Accounts payable anid accnied axpanses
Accounts payable, related pary
Entranta fee deposits
Laan paydble, relstad paity
Aanuites payable
Mat cash provided by (used in} operating sctivitles

Cash Furchases from Investing Activitles
Sales of invesiments and cash teld by tnysies, net
[nvastment In Seahury al Poweder Forest LLOC

Incraase In accounts payabla and accrued axpenses refated ta constiuetion

Puschases of progery and equipment
Poyment of deferred marketing cosls
Net cash provided by {used injinvosting acllvites

Cash Fiows from Financing Activiles
Principal payments on bonds payable
Principal payments on fean payable
Piincipal payments on capllat leazes
Conbritiutfons from membars
Nel cash providad hy (used in) financing sctivides

Net Decrease In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Gask Equivalants - Beginning of Yasr

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Chireh Hame of Seabury Saghury al
Hartforg Charflable Soabury Powdar Forest
incorparated Foundalion, Ing, At Home, Ine. LLG Eliminatiens Tatal

$ (2,888,133 & 662253} § (170,733 § (127,648) § 127,646 § 3,721,119}
24,323,265 - 1,035,240 - - 25,359,206
8,717,114 2329 51,604 - - 68,771,137
157263 - - - - 152,263
81,865 - - - . 01,685
(78,284} - - - - (75,284}
{2.536,604) - {4017.560) - - (2.538,3643
53,039 - - - - 83,039
152,106 (75,218} - - - 76,967
(134,488) - - . - (134,988}

- 63,824 63,824 - {127,648) -
{1,551,308) (1,551,306}
2,553,653 - - - 2,553,693
(854,222 - - - - 854,222}
117,610 - - - {117,610} -
{678,216) - (499,503) - - {1,078,718)
{417.768) 1461 28148 1,163 - {388,948)
317,284 - - - {317,294} -
(289,923) {219.943) (6.009) - - {616,675)

- - (irain} - 117,610 -
(2,583,853} - - - - {2,561,653)

. - (317,204} - 317,204 -

- {25,281} - - - {25,261)
22630702 (815,082} {335,853} (176,485} - 21,253,303

21,984,409 724,912 - - - 22,719,324

- {63,000} {63,000} - 126,000 -
(6,720,88%) - - - - (6,720,688}
{12.862,248) {16390} {8,487) - - {17,867,125)
{22,479) - - - - (22,179)
(2,618,507 45,922 {71,407} - 128,000 {1.818.872)
{12,045,000) - - - - (18,945,000)
{27,001) - - - - {27,081}
{95.487) - - - - {85487

- - - 125,000 {126,000) -
{20,067.568) - - 126,000 {126.000 {20,067.568}
(88,772} {269,540} {407.340) (488) - {733,137}

3,186,707 50,328 6,764,318 2,089 - 10,293,440
8 3430835 $ £0,785 5 8.346.9¢8 § 1,584 5 -5 9.560,302

26—




SEABURY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 39, 2017

Cash Fiows from Operating Activities
Change in nel assels
Adjustmanis ta reconcile changa n net assats
to net cash provided by (used in) operating actvitias:
Proceeds from entranca less, net of refunds
Bapreciation
Loss an disposs! of proparty
Bad debt axpense
Amertization of bond financing cosls
Ampitization of band pramium
A ization of ie deforred fees
Change in net urraskzed gain on invasiments
Change in Intarest in perpetusl lrusts
Loss on invesiment In Seabury &t Powter Forest LLC
{fncroase} decrease in operaling assets)
Entrancs fas deposils
Accounts receivable and pledges recalvabic
Accounts recelvable, ralated parly
Enlrance foes recelvable
Prepaid axpanses and olther current assals
Laan receivabla, relalsd parly
Qlher racelvabies
incraase (decreasa}in opetating Rebillles:
Aczounts payable and accrued expanses
Aczounts payabla, related parly
Entanca fae deposits
Loan payabie, refated party
Aarrudlas payably
Nal cash provided by {used In) operaing activilles

GCesh Purchs from Activilh

Bales of {pirchases of) investments snd cash hafd hy Yrusies, net

tnvestment In Scabury at Powder Forasi LLG

increase in aceaunts payable and acorued axpansas relatad o constaclion

of praparty and
Paymant of deferred marieling costs
Mat cagh provided by {usad in) invesilag activilles

Gash Flows from Financing Activities
Principsl payments on bonds payable
Principal payments on foan payable
Principal payrents on copitel fapses
Canleibubons lram mambers
Nat cash provided by {used in} financing activites

Netincrease (Deocroasa} In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Gash and Cash Equivatents « Reginmlng of Year

Cash and Cesh Equlvalents - End of Yaar

Church Home of Seabury Seabtiry at
Yartford Charltabie Seabury Powder Farest
Incorperated Foundatton, Inc, At Home, Inc. LLC Ellminations Totat
$ (2,508,589} $ 1420924 % {360,680} § (121432) § 121,432 § (1.458,563)
2,721,009 - 1,399,614 . - 4,120,623
4,260,326 1,609 50,578 - - 4312813
306,731 - - - 306,731
21,432 - 177,401 - - 198,834
21,685 - - - - 91,665
{76,284} - - - - (76,284}
(2.635,365) - {324,381) - - {2,558,748)
(229,880) (278,225} B B - (508,105}
(237,629} - - - - (237,629)
- 50,716 80,16 - {121,432) -
{397,586} - - - - {307 5BE)
{220,231} - - - - {220,231}
{182,384} - - - 182,384 -
024,748 - 173,430 - - 4,008,178
(15,7473 (30,214) (30,295} {1,253} - 177,508)
4,248,369 - - - {1,240,369) -
5,667 - - - - 6,567
264,888 219,817 2,489 {1,059} - 486,053
- - 182,384 - {182,304} -
397,586 - - - - 307,588
B - 1,248,369) B 1,248,369 -
- {86,300) - - - {85,300}
3,737,615 1,308,227 73,999 (123,744) N 4,896,067
35,714,613 {1,030,462) - - - 24,684,151
- 62,347} (62,347) - 124,694 -
3,085,690 - - - - 3,086,590
(43,334,435) - 21,748 - - {43,312,688)
{568,792) - - - - (568,792)
{6,103,024) (1,082,808) (40.598) - 124,894 (6.111.737)
{895,600) - - - - {B45,G00)
{88,571} - - - - {88,571}
{86,965) - B - - {85,965)
- - . 124,604 {124,894) .
{1,066,5636Y - - 124,694 (124,804} {1,069,536)
(2,434,945} 245,418 33,401 850 - (2,185,178)
5621.652 134,907 6,720,938 1,118 - 12,478,816
g 3488707 & 350,326 § 6,764,330 § 2.068 § - § 10,203.440

.30



EXHIBIT C

PRO FORMA INCOME STATEMENTS







2019 SOURCES & USE OF FUNDS

Notes and Assumptions for Pro Forma Revenue and Expenses

2019 Revenue and Expense Assumptions

Seabury is using an average occupancy rate of 92% for independent living
apartments and cottages. Life Care contract holders monthly fees increased by
3.25% effective October 1, 2018. Earned entry fees are at $2,632,000.

Skilled nursing occupancy is projected at 90%, with a payer mix projected at 18
private pay, 26 continuing care contract holders, 11 Medicare and 10 Medicaid
residents. A rate increase of 4.0% established a new daily fee of $529 for skilled care
private pay.

Views occupancy is projected to average 90%, with a 3.5% rate increase used for
the budget. The payer mix is projected to be 25 private pay, 10 continuing care
contract holders, and 9 residential care residents.

Meadows occupancy is projected to average 90%, with a 4.0% rate increase used for
the budget. The payer mix is projected to be 33 private pay, 6 continuing care
contract holders, and 13 residential care residents.

Budgeted staffing for FY2019 is 300 FTEs, which is a decrease of 25 FTE’s from
the FY2018 budget. The decrease is a result of outsourcing culinary management
staff as well as eliminating several positions upon completion of the repositioning
construction project. Total salaries are projected at $13,550,000 for the 2019
operating budget.

Seabury’s 2019 operating budget is projecting $35,479,000 in revenues and
$39,819,000 in expenses, for a net loss of ($4,340,000) before capital expenditures.
Seabury is projected to spend approximately $1,900,000 on capital expenditures for
2019 fiscal year.




CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD INCORPORATED
FORECASTED BALANCE SHEETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 - 2021
(IN THOUSANDS OF DCLLARS)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

CASH*

ASSET REPLACEMENT FUNDS*
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
OTHER

ESCROW DEPOSITS HELD

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
ENDOWMENT FUNDS*
TRUSTEE HELD FUNDS*
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
CONSTRUCTION [N PROGRESS - CAMPUS REPOSITIONING
DEFERRED MARKETING COST, NET
BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUSTS
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
ZIEGLER LINKAGE INVESTMENT

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/ACCRUED EXPENSES

CURRENT PORTICN CF FY16 BOND DEBT

CURRENT PORTION CF £Y15 BOND BEBT

CURRENT PORTION OF CAPITAL LEASE

ESCROW DEPOSITS HELD

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
DEFERRED ENTRANCE FEES
FY16 BOND LONG-TERM DEBT, LESS CURRENT PORTION
PLUS PREMIUM ON FY16 BONDS
FY15 BOND LONG-TERM DEBT, LESS CURRENT PORTION
PLUS PREMIUM ON FY15 BONDS
COST OF REFINANCING BONDS FY15
CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE
COST OF FINANCING FY16 BONDS
TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1130/2019

ESTIMATED
ACTUAL BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST
2018 2019 2020 2021
$2,003 $2,428 $3.977 $6.033
228 228 228 228
3,448 3,305 3,404 3,506
945 973 1,002 1,032
204 208 212 2168
7,428 7,142 8,824 11,016
13,435 14,555 14,675 14,795
11,728 7,051 7,192 7,336
115,100 10,585 106,025 101,563
584 0 0 0
1,053 967 867 767
5,279 5,279 5,279 5,279
175 213 232 251
270 345 420 445
155,052 146,137 143,514 141,452
3,290 3,290 3,299 3,290
0 0 0 0
970 1,010 1,050 1,100
93 107 114 121
204 204 204 204
4,557 4,611 4,558 4,715
£3,330 63,511 64,761 66,077
56,255 52,515 52,615 52,515
1,533 1,490 1,446 1,402
30,505 29,495 26,445 27,345
647 615 563 551
(813) (772) 731) (690}
392 277 163 42
(1,777 (1,726} (1,675) (1,624)
83,742 81,894 80,746 79,541
175 218 232 251
154,804 150,220 150,417 150,584
248 (4,082) (6,904) (9,132)
$155,052 $146,157 $143,513 $141,452



CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD INCORPORATED
FORECASTED STATEMENTS CF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 - 2021

(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)
ESTIMATED
ACTUAL BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST
2018 2019 2020 2021
OPERATING REVENUES:
MONTHLY FEES $10,763 $43,171 $13,509 $14.041
EARNED ENTRY FEES 2,537 2,632 3,779 3,802
ASSISTED LIVING REVENUE 2,639 3,010 3,115 3,224
ASSISTED LIVING - MEADCWS REVENUE 3,617 4,187 4,354 4,529
HOME HEALTH REVENUE 615 585 603 621
SKILLED NURSING 7,919 8,304 8,636 8,082
SERVICES TO SEABURY AT HOME 1,575 1,892 1,949 2,007
OTHER REVENUE 1,142 746 768 701
INVESTMENT INCOME 1,099 952 981 1,010
CONTRIBUTIONS AND GIFTS 1,423 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 33,329 35,479 37,784 39,007
OPERATING EXPENSES:
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 10,890 11,616 11,964 12,323
MEDICAL AND OTHER RESIDENT CARE 9,022 10,080 10,382 10,694
DIETARY 3,680 3,324 3,424 3,526
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANGE 2,420 2,198 2,264 2,332
HOUSEKEEPING AND LAUNDRY 1,001 1,118 1,152 1,186
INTEREST 4,021 4,206 4,158 4,110
DEPRECIATION 6,542 7,099 7,060 6,962
AMORTIZATION 175 178 192 182
TOTAL EXPENSES 37,751 39,818 40,586 41,326
OPERATING LOSS (4,422) (4,340) (2,812) (2.228)
CHANGE IN NET UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT (152) 0 0 0
GIFT RECEIVED IN INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUST 1,551 0 0 0
CHANGE (N INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUST 135 0 0 0
NET LOSS (2,888) (4,340) (2,812) (2,228)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,136 248 (4,002) (6.904)

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $248 (54,092} ($6,804) ($9,132)




CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD INCORPORATED
FORECASTED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 - 2021
(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NET LOSS
ADJUSTMENTS:

DEPRECIATION

AMORTIZATION

INYEREST EXPENSE - COST OF REFINANCE REDUCTION
EARNED ENTRY FEES

ENTRY FEES RECEIVED

ENTRY FEES REFUNDED

CHANGES IN CURRENT LIABILITIES
CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND EQUIPMENT
ZIEGLER LINKAGE INVESTMENT

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
REPAYMENT OF BOND DEBT 15
REPAYMENT OF BOND DEBT 16
REPAYMENT OF CAPITAL LEASE

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ANNUAL CASH FLOW

CASH BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH END OF YEAR®

NOTE: ACCOUNTS INCLUDED IN CASH END OF YEAR ARE INDICATED

ON THE BALANCE SHEET WITH AN ASTERISK (*).

BUDGET  FORECAST  FORECAST
2019 2020 2021
($4,340) {$2,812) ($2,228)
7,099 7,080 6,962
178 192 192
{75) (76) (76)
(2,632) (3,779) (3,892)
4,872 7,292 7476
(2,059) {2,243) (2,288)
38 19 19
(227) (152) (155}
2,854 5,502 6,009
{2,000) {2,500) (2,500)
(75) (75) (25)
(2,075) (2,575) (2,525)
(970) {1,010) (1,050)
(3,740) 0 0
(10%) (107) (114)
(4,81%) ¢1,117) (1,164)
(4,032) 1,810 2,320
28,294 24,262 26,072
$24,262 $26,072 $28,392



CHURCH HOME OF HARTFORD INCORPORATED
FORECASTED FINANCIAL RATIO COVENANTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 - 2021

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIC (ANNUALIZED)

ANNUAL COVENANT REQUIREMENT 1.20

DAYS CASH ON HAND

SEMI-ANNUAL REQUIREMENT 180 DAYS

BUDGET FORECAST  FORECAST
2019 2020 2021

1.38 1.86 1.95

188 DAYS 201 DAYS 220 DAYS




Rate Increases:
WU
Congregate
HFA

Nursing

Other income
Entrance Fees

interest Income:
Marketable Securities
Operating Accounts

Expenses:
Salaries

Other

GROWTH RATE ASSUMPTIONS

2018

3.25%
3.50%
3.60%
4.00%
2.00%
2.00%

3.00%
0.10%

3.00%
3.00%

020

3.25%
3.50%
3.50%
4.00%
2.00%
2.00%

3.00%
0.10%

3.00%
3.00%

2021

3.25%
3.50%
3.50%
4.00%
2.00%
2.00%

3.00%
0.10%

3.00%
3.00%

Projected occupancy is 92% for 1LU, 90% for Congregate/HFA, and 90% for

Nursing throughout the Three Year Forecast.

Forecasted additional Life Care Contract holders permanently transferring to

the Health Center are as follows:

Congregate/HFA
Nursing

Current
2018
20
21

2019
2
2

2020

2021

1/30/2019



SEABURY

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT DATA

Increase Monthly Entry Fees Entry Fees | Entry Fees
Effective Fees Plan A/Plan Plan B Plan C/
Date % Increase 2%/0% % Increase Plan 67%
% Increase % Increase
10/01/1993 5.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
10/01/1994 5.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
10/01/1995 4.00% 3.50% 6.00% 2.80%
10/01/1996 5.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
10/01/1997 3.50% 0.00% 10.00% 0.00%
10/01/1998 2.00% 5.00% 10.00% 5.00%
10/01/1999 2.00% 2.90% 2.90% 2.90%
10/01/2000 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
10/01/2001 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
10/01/2002 3.00% 3.00% Plan 95/85 3.00%
implemented
10/01/2003 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
10/01/2004 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2005 4,50% 4,50% 4.50% 4.50%
10/01/2006 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
10/01/2007 4.00% 4.00% 4,00% 4,00%
10/01/2008 3.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2009 4.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
10/01/2010 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
10/01/2011 2.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
10/01/2012 3.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
10/01/2013 3.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
10/01/2014 3.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2015 3.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2016 3.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2017 3.25% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2018 3.25% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
10/01/2019 3.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

- 18 -







EXHIBIT D

ENTRANCE FEES/PERIODIC CHARGES

PAYMENT OF ENTRANCE FEE OR OTHER TRANSFER OF ASSETS
PURSUANT TO A CONTINUING CARE CONTRACT MAY HAVE
SIGNIFICANT TAX CONSEQUENCES. ANY PERSON CONSIDERING
SUCH PAYMENT OR TRANSFER MAY WISH TO CONSULT A

QUALIFIED ADVISOR.
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SCHEDULE OF CHARGES (Effective10/1/19 — 10/1/20)

ASSISTED LIVING SERVICES (ALSA)
e Attached brochure available at the Clinic Desk

BEAUTY SALON
¢ See attached (Charges also posted outside salon on 5 floor)

CARPORT
¢ $65 per month
« No fee for solar carports

COT/ROLL-A-WAY/PORT-A-CRIB
o $12.25 per night

EMERGENCY OXYGEN
e $25 per incident
For emergency intervention offered by Seabury Security personnel

GARAGE
e $115 per month

GUEST MEALS
e Lunch, Dinner; a la carte in Bistro
e Dinner (Main Dining Room): $18 (tax included)
o Brunch $22.50
¢ Special meals (Easter, Christmas, Thanksgiving, Mother’s Days etc.): $24.00
» Children under 10 yrs: $10.00

GUEST ROOMS
e $90 per night

HANDYMAN SERVICES
o $50 per hour
Two weeks’ notice for cancellation, otherwise full fee is charged

HOUSEKEEPING
¢ $40 per hour for an occasional additional cleaning of apartment or cottage
¢ $30 for additional permanent cleaning
¢ $40 per hour for additional carpet shampooing

Two weeks’ notice required for cancellation, otherwise full fee charged




SCHEDULE OF CHARGES (Effective10/1/19)

KEYS
o $10 card key replacement charge
e $1.50 duplication charge for apartment, cottage, mailbox, or storage keys
o $150.00 Sara Pendent Replacement

MEAL DELIVERY.
o $4 Tray delivery service

NAME TAGS
e $7 replacement fee

Pet Services
o Dog Walking $15 per 30 mins

SPECIAL CULIARY EVENTS
e $4 Men’s Breakfast & Resident Breakfast
» $16 Special Meals ((Easter, Christmas, Thanksgiving, Mother’s Day etc.)
o Special event staffing and support.
o Sever/bartender $25
o Tech/setup $25 per hour
o Contact culinary for menu prices vary

THE SALON AND SPA AT SEABURY
» Seabury Salon & Spa brochures available at the Spa across from Heritage Hall

TRANSPORTATION
o $1.75 per mile (Pending driver is available)
o Outside of designated schedule areas.
o Reoccurring doctors’ appointments (chemo therapy, dialysis, wound care etc.)
o Medical services provided on campus

+ Round Trip to Seabury Meadows $5.00

» $8.00/10.00 transportation charge for special activities (varies on distance)

» C.N.A, escort for medical appointments fee is 7-3PM $33/hour,
after 3PM $34/hour

» AMR-Wheelchair Service: Contracted rate with provider plus mileage (per
mile fee), Contact our Transportation coordinator 80-243-5088

» External resources available to Seabury residents: Town of Bloomfield Mini Bus
(860-243-8361) or ITN (860-951-5873 or 860-253-6394) Ace Cab (860-222-
2222)Uber and Lifts Apps are also another source.



NUTRITION CONSULTATION
¢ Nutrition Consultation $50 per hour
o To arrange for an appointment contact front desk

PERSONAL TRAINING
¢ These services are available through the Fithess & Wellness Center,
Fees for individual are: $30 for 30 minutes
$45 per hour
$50 per hour Partner training
e Contact the Director of Fithess & Wellness at extension 6007 for more
information.

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES (Effective 10/1/19)

REHABILITATION SERVICES
¢ Insurance coverage varies with Doctor Prescription and insurance plan.
o Private Pay charges for Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy services
coincide with Medicare reimbursement rates for service codes rendered.
¢ For a full range of services please refer to the Rehabilitation brochure available
at the Wellness Clinic desk.

e Contact the Rehabilitation Director at extension 6078 for more information.

IT SERVICES

Seabury IT Squad

Seabury is proud to offer in-house IT support to all Seabury residents. We provide
Complimentary, as well as, Paid IT Services for more complex tasks. Seabury has
partnered with ESCO Technologies to provide enhanced Phone, TV and, optionally,
Internet services to your residence. ESCO provides onsite support Monday to Friday
from 8am to 4.30pm.

*Please note ESCO complimentary IT services are only available to ESCO custometrs.
ESCO’s contract is active through April 2020.




Service Requests

To request service, from either ESCO or Seabury, you can use the convenient online
work order system available through the Seabury Residents Portal at

hitp://residents.seaburylife.org, or complete a paper work order and hand it in to the
front desk.

Complimentary IT Services

The following services are complimentary.

o Assistance with connecting resident provided computer equipment to Seabury
Resident Wifi.

e Assistance with connecting resident provided computer equipment to Seabury
Internet system, provided by ESCO. Includes setting up a new email address, if
old provider does not allow continued use of their email.

e Assistance with connecting resident provided TV to Seabury cable system,
provided by ESCO.

o Assistance with connecting resident provided telephone equipment to wall
socket, provided by ESCO.

Paid IT Services

o Initial 10 minute diagnostic consultation, $15
o Hourly charge thereafter, $50

Computers
o Computer Setup o QOperating System Install
o Computer Tune-up o Printer Setup or Troubleshoot
» Data Backup or Transfer o Software Install & Setup
e Data Recovery e Technology Consultation
o Email Setup e Training
e Hardware Install o Virus & Spyware Removal
¢ Hardware Repair » Wireless Networking
o Memory Install
Networking
e Router setup o Firewall programming
o Network Wiring o Wifi adapter installation and
setup
Audio/Video
e TV and home theater ¢ Home stereo connectivity
connectivity support support
e HookupaTV




e Hook up a new device (TV and e Set up surround sound
audio)

e Set up a universal remote

e Hook up a home theater

Mobile

e Phone setup and maintenance
e Tablet setup and maintenance

Please add to the Resident Handbook







Announcing
price list as of October 1. 2019

The Seabury Beauty/Barber Salon is open Tuesday thru Friday

9 AM to 3 PM for residents and their guests

All charges will be listed on Resident Monthly Statements

Call for an appointment 243-6090

Shampoo & Set
(Long Hair)

Shampoo Only

Shampoo & Blow Dry with Curling Iron

Haircut (Men/Women)
with Shampoo

Permanent Waves
(Shampoo/Cut/Set or Blow Dry included)

Dry Comb Out
Tints (Includes Set or Blow Dry)

Frosting/Cap or Foil

All Color Rinses, Special Shampoos
(Dandruff, Shimmer Lights and Conditioners)

Manicures

Virgin Relaxer
Retouch Relaxer

Beard Trim

Deep Conditioner

$25.50
$27.50 - $30.50

$16.00
$26.50

$27.50
$31.50

$80.00

$16.50
$53.00

$70.00
$3.00

$17.50

$68.00
$63.00

$10.00-$17.00

$16.50

Operator is an “Independent Contractor” rather than a Seabury Employee.

Therefore, cash gratuities are permitted.
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About Us
Welcome to Seabury residents, Seabury At Home members,
their families, and Seabury staff.

Our wish is to provide therapeutic massage for the regular
client or newcomer which supports their full enjoyment of
life and the easing of the unique physical challenges
of aging.

Massage begins with caring and supportive touch and
cascades into many benefits to the entire body and the
entire person.

Our therapists offer techniques that enhance your fitness
and health practices. Our services are grounded in the
Swedish massage tradition with additional techniques
applied in your individualized session. We make
communication a priority in meeting your needs and to
maintain complete comfort in the process. Your first session
will include an opportunity to share your health history and
discuss a plan for your care.

Location

The Salon and Spa offers two dedicated private massage

rooms that offer a quiet and restful environment.. The -
treatment rooms and restroom are fully accessible. OE.___
adjustable massage tables make it simple to: Bo<m on

and off.

L _.z.m m_.ms_m_. and UmSm nmunm_.

Menu of Services

When you make an appointment, please consider these
suggestions and timeframes.

30 minute massage $30
Ideal for a focused session:
¢ Face, neck and shoulders
¢ Feet and calves (warm towels optional)
o A trouble “spot”

45 or 60 minute massage
Ideal for a whole body approach:
o Swedish massage providing pure relaxation.*
¢ - To relieve chnc_m nmzm_o: or for
‘injury recovery. *: -
o Light touch :._mmmmm_m wonmmmn_ on. ___nmmm ﬁmno<m_.<

$45, $60

*A warm stone treatment can be
added to your 45 or 60 minute
session for $15 additior
moow thi 5 mmgnm 2_5

3mmmmum _qo.. Wmmﬁmnﬂ in




SEABURY WELLNESS CLINIC

Fees for Services Provided:
By a Licensed Nurse

«  Pre-pour of medication $ 48.00/week
Medication boxes
White, Large (daily) $ 5.00
Blue/Green (week) $12.00

Nurse Medication Ordering/Faxing  $ 12.00/per order
to mail order pharmacy

Services provided by a Licensed Nurse in apartment/cottage
(RN/LPN; under order of a physician) $19.00/15 mins.

Treatments by appt. (with MD orders) $12.00/15 mins.
in Clinic; Supplies billed to resident on Seabury monthly statement

»  Monthly B12 Injections in Clinic  $12.00
« Daily Injections in Clinic $ 8.00/Injection

»  Administration of Eye Drops/Ear Drops:
In Clinic - per administration $ 3.00

» Nasal Sprays and Inhalers $ 3.00/per visit

¢ FEar Flush by Licensed Nurse  $25.00

Revised 10/2019







Seabury ASSISTED LIVING SERVICES AGENCY
CHARGE SLIP FOR SERVICES
October 1, 2019-September 30, 2020
Resident Name: Apt/Cottage:
Service Charges Provided
Medication prepour (weekly) $48.00/week

Nurse visit to home for: (circle one, indicate type)
Treatment, procedures, client teaching,

wellness counseling, health promotion, Total time:

disease prevention, assessment $19.00/15 minutes Charge:

Supplies for home treatment hilled to resident

on Seabury Monthly Statement Charge:

Nurse Ordering mail order Pharmacy S 12.00/mail order

Treatments by appointment with MD orders in

Clinic by RN $ 12.00/15 minutes

Supplies for treatment billed directly to

Resident on Seabury Monthly Statement S____ Quoted charge

Monthly/Bi-Annuat Injections S 12.00/injection

Weekly Injections $ 12.00/injection

Daily Injections S 8.00/injection

Administration of eye drops in Clinic S 3.00/visit

Adminstration of Ear Flush in Clinic S 25.00 total

Administration of Nasal Sprays/inhalers S 3.00/visit

Hemacult Test $ 16.00/visit

Other:
Reguest for service by resident Total time:  Charge:
Emergency request for aid Total time:  Charge:
Request for nurse assist from Security Total time:  Charge:
Emergency __  Non-emergency

Total Charges:

| AM AWARE THAT | WILL BE CHARGED FOR A NURSING VISIT IF IT IS DEEMED A
NON-EMERGENCY CALL.

Client's Signature

Date

R.N.'s Signature

Copy to: Accounting
SALSA
Resident

Rev. 10-2019

Date







We can help you
meet your health

Initial Consuitation...$75.00 WDQ .j.nﬂmmm mommm
On-going sessions...$60.00/hr. U< Q®<dm_3w an
Initial Home Consultation...$90.00 | MSQ.?\&QCD:NQQ
On-going Home sessions....

$75.00/visit

work just for you!

For more information about these |
services or to make an Let Seabury’s Registered Dietician
Appointment, please call Il guide you with a personalized menu
860-243-6070 ” of the food pyramid

Imeal plan that will

Individualized nutritional
counseling can benefit many
health concerns that are

affected by the diet, including:

Weight management
Cardiovascular disease

High blood pressure and high
cholesterol

Diabetes

Other alterations in blood
sugar levels

Gastrointestinal disorders
Crohn’s Disease

[rritable Bowel Syndrome
Cancer

Kidney disease

Failure to thrive

Food allergies

Heart disease
Hypoglycemia
Osteoporosis

Renal disease

Anemia

Metabolic disorders
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EXHIBIT E

ENTRANCE FEE ESCROW AGREEMENT

Note: The Fntrance Fee Escrow Agreement is now held between Church
Home of Hartford, Incorporated, d/b/a Seabury and Philanthropic
Administration, U.S. Trust, Bank of America Private Wealth Management.
The original agreement, with any amendments attached thereto, is still in
effect per Section 11 of the Agreement.






FUNDS TRANSIFER AGREEMENT

vt Tiucd sk (the “Costomer™), and Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank ™ *) hereby agree

Ludadel] PovtC a8 [ Fucd
that the following sets ot the terms under which we may perform Funds transfers for the Customer

Transfer Instructions. Any of the Customer’s Authorized Representatives may instruct the Bank to transfer funds
from the Customer's Accounts with the Bank to any other Account with the Bank or with another institution. The
Bank reserves the right to refuse any transfer instructions, and in particular, the Bank reserves the rigchi to refise
transfer instructions if the identity of the Authorized Representative has not been confirmed, the Ace vunt from which
the Bank is instructed to transfer funds has an insufficient Account balance, or the transfer nstroctioy is incomplete,
The Bank will use its best efforts o notify the Customer of any refusal to eccept transfer instructions |

The Customer’s Authorized Representatives are designated pursuant fo the Corporate Resoluwtion in the form of
Attachment 1 {or comparable form) to this Agreement and are listed on the DESIGNATION OF AUT HORIZED

REPRESENTATIVES attached to this Agreement. The Bank is entitled to rely upon the fact that each person listed

on the DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES is authorized to cffect funds trans fers from the
Customer’s Accounts until the Bank receives writien notice from the Customer revoking such person’s authomy

This authority includes the power to withdraw and debit the Customer®s Accounts, execute any further documents
necessary to effect funds iransfers and, where applicable, (o choose and change the Keyword used in the Bank's
securily procedures. Itis the Costomer’s obligation 1o notify the Bank immediately upon revocation of authority of
an Authorized Representative: By providing the Bank with a Keyword, as indicated on the DESIGNATION OF
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES, the Customer authorizes the Bank to make transfers based up on oral requests
of the Anthorized Representatives. The Customer has the sole abligation 1o ensure that all Authorized
Represemat;vss keep the Keyword confidential and to notify the Bank :mmed:ate!}/ by telephone (with a follow up in
In the event

writing} if there is reazon Lo believe that the Keyword has been disclosed to any unanthorized person.
the Customer revokes the authority of an Authorized Representative or discovers that the Keyword may- have been

disclosed o any unauthorized person, the Customer also has the obligation of establishing a new Keyword and

informing the Authorized Representatives of the new Keywaord

- Upon aceeptance of the Authorized Representative's written or oral transfer instructions, the Bank will charge the
Custorner’s Accounts afier performing the security procedures set forth below; provided, however, that the Bank will
take no action on instructions received afler 2:55 p.n. ET (the Bank’s internal processing.cutoff). In executing the

transfer instructions, the Bank is entitled to rely upon Accourit numbers of the beneficiary bank or intermediary bank

rather than names.
Security Procedures. The Customer agrees to the use of the following security procedures to ensure the integrity of

its yansfer instructions:

a) For written instrucijons, the Bank will confirm that the name of the person sending the instructions is [isied as
one of jts Authorized Representatives and the Bank will compare the signature on the written request 1o ils
records. The Customer will also verify the Account numberio confinm that the Authorized Representative hag

appropriate authorify to transfer funds from that Account. When the written instruction Is received via fax
machine or, is in excess of certain dollar amounts, the Bank will confirm the request by confacting an Authorized

Representative.
Where the Customer has authorized oral instructions by designating a K'ayworﬁi, the Bank will check the name of

b) | i
the person sending the instructions against its list of Authorized Representatives, and ask the Avthorized
Representative to give the Bank the Keyword (reflected on the DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVES). In circumsiances where he Authorized Representative is unable to supply the Keyword,
hut indicates that the wire transfer is urgent and must be proceised, the Custorner agrees to send the Bank writlen

wire transfer instrictions and comply with security procedures as outlined in section 2 a) above

42-1Z [BNSBW 05-20035 Poge ] of 2







3. Liability. 'I'he Bank will be respongible onfy-1or performung the services as expressly provided inthis Apgrecment.
The Bank will have o responsibility for Josses or delays caused by unclear, incomplete, coniradictory or duplicative
instructions; errors or omissions of correspondent banks or other ngents used to effett funds transfers; fire or other

catasizophes; computer, mechanical o electrical failures or any eircumstances beyond its control. The Bank will not
be lahle for any loss, liability or expense, which may result from the performance, delay or nonperformance of

services unless caused by its willful misconduct. In the event of an error on the part of the Bank, its Hability will be
limited to correcting the eror and restoring lost interest to the Account, if any. The Bank will not be responsible for
special, incidental, compensatory or consequential damages or aftomeys' foes that the Customer may incur, regardless
of whether the Bank was mada avare of thé possibility of such dammages. The Customer agrees to jndennify the
Bank agatnst any loss, liability or expense (including attorneys' fees and expenses) incurred by the Bank in

performing the services contemplated herein,

Apreed.and Accepted:
) g <
Date;: 5/9 /(7Z— By: A ciotes D {’/\Eau
(Cusromer s duly authorized Agenf)

J42-171BNSBW 052005 Puge20f2






EXHIBIT I

BILL OF RIGHTS






SEABURY
Managed Residential Community

RESIDENTS' BILL OF RIGHTS
1. The Assisted Living Services Agency may provide:

A. Nursing services consisting of a licensed nurse, certified nursing
assistants, and resident companions who provide:

a. Assistance with activities of daily living
b. Nursing care and services by licensed nurses

c¢. Medication administration and supervision of the self-
administration of medication

d. Assessments - Development of individualized client service
blans and care plans

. Referrals to appropriate health care professjonals and
coordination of setvices with all individuals and entities involved
in the client service plans and Client teaching, wellness
counseling, health promotion and disease prevention

B. Regularly scheduled transportation for personal shopping, social
and recreational events, health care appointments and similar needs

C. Regularly scheduled hbusekeeping services

D. Maintenance Services for residents’ living units, including core
services for routine domestic tasks that the client is unable to perform

E. A program of social and recreational opportunities

F. Twenty-four (24) hour security staff

The client is billed monthly for Assisted Living Services. If any
changes occur, the client will be informed of them orally and in writing
as soon as possible, but no less than thirty (30) working days prior to

the date such changes become effective.







2. Clients can be offered services if:

A. They need assistance with the activities of daily living and/or
nursing care and services.

B. Either the resident or the resident's responsible party has
requested that the agency provides such services.

C. Such services must be provided on an emergency basis pending
other arrangements. '

3. The client or family/responsible party can actively participate in the
planning of, or any changes in, the care to be furnished and the frequency
of visits proposed, beginning upon admission. The nurse supervising care
s available on a daily basis and can be contacted by calling the clinic at

860-243-6070,

4. The dlient or family/responsible party will be actively involved in the
developruent and implementation of the dlient service program and has the
right to refuse recommended services.

5. The client has the right to be free from physical and mental abuse and
exploitation and to have personal property treated with respect.

6. Client information and service records are treated with confidentiality and
kept in a secure area. It is required that written consent be obtained from
the client or family/responsible party for release of information to persons
not otherwise authorized under the law fo receive it.

7. The client or family/responsible party may have access to the service
record. The supervisor of Assisted living Services Agency may be

. contacted to expedite this.

8. The Assisted living Services Agency shall identify and resolve wherever
possible any cause for client dissatisfaction and will thoroughly investigate.

Any client who has a grievance or complaint shall be encouraged to
discuss it with the supervisor. The client has a right to file a complaint

- without discrimination or reprisal from the agency regarding the provision of
care and services, any allegations of physical or mental abuse or







expioitatién or the lack of respect for property by anyone providing agency

services.

9. The supervisor of the Assisted Living Services Agency will investigate all
complaints in an attempt to resolve them. If a client is unable to refer to the

complaint, the client’s responsible partty can do so on behalf of the client. A

suggestion/grievance form will be completed by the supervisor and be kept

in a client complaint log accessible in the Assisted Living Services Agency

office,

10, If a client wishes to register a complaint with the Commissioner, he/she
can contact:

Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#FLIS

Hartford, CT.06134
Phone Number; (860) 509-7400

11, The client has the right to have services provided by an individual or
entity other than an assisted living service agency, providing the caregiver
meets the requirements of Assisted Living Services Agency and Seabury.
A list of area home health care agencies and other information can be
obtained by contacting the supervisor and the Assisted Living Services

Agency.

12. Seabury Assisted Living Services Agency shall continue to provide
assisted living services to clients unless one of the following occurs:

A. A change in the client's condition - the resident's condition is no
longer chronic and stable, but activities of daily living remain the
same so that responsibility for his or her care must be transferred to a
licensed home health care agency or other appropriate providar of ‘
health care services.

B. Routine discharge - the resident's health has improved sufficiently
so that he or she no longer needs the services of the Agency.






C, Emergency discharge - continyed provision of services wotld
endanger the health or safety of the resident, other residents, or the

staff of the Agency or Seabury Health Center.

D. Financial discharge - the resident or any person or entity
responsible for the cost of his or her care has failed, after reasonable

and appropriate notice, fo pay for the services.

E. Premature discharge - the resident voluntariiy terminates Agerncy
services.

13. A client whose condition is no longer chronic and stable may obtain
care from a home health care agency. These services, which are billed
through the home health care agency may be Medicare covered. Coverage
is based on the need for the home health care agency to provide skilled
nursing services that meet Medicare criteria. This determination is made on
an individual basis by the physician and the home health agency. The
home heaith care agency will provide the client with information on
Medicare eligibility. The Assisted Living Services Agency may still provide
care in collaboration with the outside agency.

14, The client has the right under state law to make decisions about
medical care, Including the right to formulate advance directives such as a
living will and durable power of attorney for health care decisions.
Information about advance directives can be obtained by contacting the

supervisor of the Assisted Living Services Agenay.
15. The client has the right to make individual arrangements with an
assisted living services agency providing the agency complies with the

State regulations that licenses and governs Assisted Living Services
Agency. Information can be obtained by contacting the Supervisor of the.

Assisted Living Services Agency.

16. The client may terminate or reduce services by an assisted living
services agency at any time by contacting the supervisor of the assisted -

living Services Agency.






SEABURY

Managed Residential Community
RESIDENT’S BILL OF RIGHTS

My signature below confirms that I have been fully
imfolrmed orally, and in writing in a language that I
understand, of the Resident’s Bill of Rights

Signature - Date

Witness






EXHIBIT G

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION
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Seabury

Statement of Actuarial
Opinion December 21, 2018

1, Dave Bond, am a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, a member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
the Managing Partner in the firm Continuing Care Actuaries, LLC, and I meet the qualification standards to
render Statements of Actuarial Opinion for continuing care retirement communities. T have been retained by
Seabury to render a Statement of Actuarial Opinion, in accordance with Section 17b- 527 of the Regulations
implementing the Continuing Care Statutes, regarding the following actuarial projections included in
Seabury’s 2018 Annual Financial Filing:

Exhibit I Residential Turnover Rates

Exhibit 11 Average Age of Residents

Exhibit HI Health Care Utilization Rates
Exhibit IV Occupancy Rates

Exhibit V Number of Health Care Admissions
Exhibit VI Days of Care

Exhibit VIT  Number of Permanent Transfers

VVVYVYVYY

T have examined the above items as shown in Seabury’s Annual Financial Filing. These items are attached
{o this Statement of Actuarial Opinion. In the course of my review, I relied upon the accuracy and
completeness of data and supporting documentation prepared by Seabury. In the course of my examination,
nothing came to my attention that causes me to believe that the underlying data information is unteasonable
or inappropriate. My examination included such review as I consider necessary of the data, methods, and
underlying assumptions used by and the resulting actuarial projections reported by Seabury with respect to
the above items as shown in Seabury’s 2018 Annual Financial Filing,

In my opinion, the above items as shown in Seabury’s 2018 Annual Financial Filing:

> are based upon methods which are consistent with sound actuarial principles and practices; and
> are based upon methods and underlying assumptions that appear reasonable and appropriate in
this instance.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact our
offices.

Respectfully,
Dave Bond, F.5.A,, MLAAA.

Managing Partner
dbond@continuingcareactuaries.com




Seabury Exhibit |

Residential Turnover Rates

The Independent Living Unit residential turnover rates for the most recently
completed fiscal year, and anficipated for the next five years, are as follows:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
8.0% 8.3% 8.5% 8.7% 8.9% 9.0%




Seabury Exhibit li

Average Age of Residents

The projected average age for the next five years for independent living residents is as follows:

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
84 84 84 85 a5




Seabury

Haalth care utilization rates, including admission rates and days per 100 residents
by level of care for the most recently completed fiscal year, and anticipated for

Health Care Utilization Rates

the next five years, are as follows:

Skilled Nursing Facility

Utilization Rate

%
7.9%
8.4%
8.9%
9.2%
9.5%
9.8%

Admission Rate

Patients

47.0
45.9
45.5
44.8
44.1
43.5

%
15.0%
14.5%
14.5%
14.4%
14.3%
14.1%

Assisted Living Units

Utilization Rate

Year Patients
2019 28.5
2020 30.8
2021 32.8
2022 34.2
2023 35.4
2024 36.4
Year Patients
2019 211
2020 247
2021 27.2
2022 291
2023 30.5
2024 31.5

%
5.9%
6.7%
7.3%
7.8%
8.2%
8.5%

Admission Rate

Patients

12.0
11.9
1.7
11.6
1.7
11.8

%
3.8%
3.8%
3.7%
3.7%
3.8%
3.8%

Days per

100 Residents

2,891
3,051
3,235
3,366
3471
3,565

Days per

100 Residents

2,139
2,438
2,678
2,859
2,930
3,085

Exhibit [l



Occupancy Rates

Occupancy rates for indepentad living unlts for the most recently
completed fiscal year, and anticipated for the next five years, are as foliows:

2019 20620 2021 2022 2023

2024

93% 95% 95% 95% 95%

95%

Exhibit 1V




Seabury Exhibit V

Number of Health Care Admissions

The number of health care admisslons, by level of care, for the most recently completed
fiscal year, and anticipated for the next five years, are as foliows:

Year Skilled Nursing Assisted Living
2019 47.0 12.0
2020 45,9 11.9
2021 45.5 11.7
2022 44.8 11.6
2023 44,1 1.7

2024 43.5 1.8



Seabury Exhibit VI

Days of Care

The number of days of care, by level of care, for tha most recently completed fiscal year,
and anticipated for the next five years, are as follows:

Year Skilied Nursing Assisted Living
2019 10,384 7,683
2020 11,260 8,997
2021 41,972 9,910
2022 12,483 10,603
2023 12,903 11,114

2024 13,286 11,498




Seabury

Number of Permanent Transfers

The number of permanent fransfers to the skilled nursing or assisted living
facility for the most recently completed fiscal year are:

Transferring from:

independent Assisted
Facility fransferred to: Living Living Total
Skilled Nursing 8.7 6.4 16.1

Assisted Living 12 NfA. 12

Exhibit Vil









